
     Ffôn/Tel: 01656 643643                                                   Facs/Fax: 01656 668126          Ebost/Email: talktous@bridgend.gov.uk                                                                                 
     Negeseuon SMS/ SMS Messaging: 07581 157014           Twitter@bridgendCBC              Gwefan/Website: www.bridgend.gov.uk

Cyfnewid testun: Rhowch 18001 o flaen unrhyw un o’n rhifau ffon ar gyfer y gwasanaeth trosglwyddo testun
Text relay: Put 18001 before any of our phone numbers for the text relay service

Rydym yn croesawu gohebiaeth yn y Gymraeg. Rhowch wybod i ni os yw eich dewis iaith yw’r Gymraeg 
We welcome correspondence in Welsh. Please let us know if your language choice is Welsh

Rydym yn croesawu gohebiaeth yn Gymraeg. 
Rhowch wybod i ni os mai Cymraeg yw eich 

dewis iaith.
We welcome correspondence in Welsh. Please 
let us know if your language choice is Welsh.

Cyfarwyddiaeth y Prif Weithredwr / Chief 
Executive’s Directorate 
Deialu uniongyrchol / Direct line /: 01656 643148 / 
643147 / 643694
Gofynnwch am / Ask for: Mrs Julie Ellams 

Ein cyf / Our ref:      
Eich cyf / Your ref:      

Dyddiad/Date: Dydd Mercher, 20 Mawrth 2019

Annwyl Cynghorydd, 

PWYLLGOR Y CABINET CYDRADDOLDEB

Cynhelir Cyfarfod Pwyllgor Y Cabinet Cydraddoldeb yn Ystafelloedd Pwyllgor 2/3 - Swyddfeydd
Dinesig, Stryd yr Angel, Pen-y-bont ar Ogwr CF31 4WB ar Dydd Mawrth, 26 Mawrth 2019 am 
10:00.

AGENDA

1. Ymddiheuriadau am absenoldeb  
Derbyn ymddiheuriadau am absenoldeb gan Aelodau.

2. Datganiadau o fuddiant  
Derbyn datganiadau o ddiddordeb personol a rhagfarnol (os o gwbl) gan Aelodau / 
Swyddogion yn unol â darpariaethau'r Cod Ymddygiad Aelodau a fabwysiadwyd gan y 
Cyngor o 1 Medi 2008

3. Cymeradwyaeth Cofnodion  3 - 6
I dderbyn am gymeradwyaeth y Cofnodion cyfarfod y 19 11 18

4. Diweddariad ar Drais Domestig - Pobl Hyn a'r Cyflawnwr 7 - 22

5. Gwasanaethau Iechyd Meddwl ym Mhen y Bont ar Ogwr 23 - 44

6. Adroddiad diweddaru ar weithredu Safonau'r Gymraeg 45 - 48

7. Adroddiad Blynyddol Cynllun Cydraddoldeb Strategol 2017/18 49 - 66

8. Adolygiad Blynyddol Asesiad o Effaith ar Gydraddoldeb 2018/19 67 - 76

9. Blaenraglen Waith 2019/20 77 - 80

10. Materion Brys  

Public Document Pack

mailto:talktous@bridgend.gov.uk
http://www.bridgend.gov.uk/


I ystyried unrhyw eitemau o fusnes y, oherwydd amgylchiadau arbennig y cadeirydd o'r farn 
y dylid eu hystyried yn y cyfarfod fel mater o frys yn unol â Rhan 4 (pharagraff 4) o'r 
Rheolau Trefn y Cyngor yn y Cyfansoddiad.

Yn ddiffuant
K Watson
Pennaeth Gwasanaethau Cyfreithiol a Rheoleiddiol

Dosbarthiad:

Cynghowrwyr Cynghorwyr Cynghorwyr
SE Baldwin
TH Beedle
HJ David
SK Dendy
J Gebbie
DG Howells

JE Lewis
D Patel
JC Radcliffe
KL Rowlands
CE Smith
E Venables

SR Vidal
PJ White
HM Williams
RE Young



PWYLLGOR Y CABINET CYDRADDOLDEB - DYDD LLUN, 19 TACHWEDD 2018

1

COFNODION CYFARFOD Y PWYLLGOR Y CABINET CYDRADDOLDEB A GYNHALIWYD 
YN SWYDDFEYDD DINESIG, STRYD YR ANGEL, PEN-Y-BONT AR OGWR CF31 4WB 
DYDD LLUN, 19 TACHWEDD 2018, AM 10:00

Presennol

Y Cynghorydd D Patel – Cadeirydd 

SE Baldwin DG Howells JC Radcliffe KL Rowlands
CE Smith E Venables PJ White HM Williams
RE Young

Ymddiheuriadau am Absenoldeb

TH Beedle, HJ David, SK Dendy a/ac J Gebbie

Swyddogion:

Michael Pitman Prentys Busnes Gweinyddol Gwasanaethau Democrataidd
Andrew Rees Uwch Swyddog Gwasanaethau Democrataidd – Pwyllgorau

34. DATGANIADAU O GYSYLLTIAD

Dim.

35. CYMERADWYO’R COFNODION

PENDERFYNWYD:     Cymeradwyo Cofnodion cyfarfod Pwyllgor y Cabinet 
Cydraddoldeb dyddiedig 16 Gorffennaf 2018, fel cofnod gwir a 
chywir.

36. YSTYRIED BOD CYNGOR BWRDEISTREF SIROL PEN-Y-BONT AR OGWR YN 
MABWYSIADU DIFFINIAD LLAWN GWRTH-SEMITIAETH FEL Y CYNIGIWYD GAN 
GYNGHRAIR RHYNGWLADOL COFIO’R HOLOCOST (IHRA).

Derbyniodd y Pwyllgor adroddiad yn gofyn iddo ystyried mabwysiadu Diffiniad Llawn 
Gwrth-semitiaeth Fel y Cynigiwyd gan Gynghrair Rhyngwladol Cofio’r Holocost (IHRA). 
Mabwysiadwyd y diffiniad hwn yn llawn gan Lywodraeth Cymru, awdurdodau lleol eraill 
yng Nghymru a Lloegr a’r pedwar heddlu ar draws Cymru.

Bydd diffiniad IHRA yn helpu pob sefydliad a chorff yng Nghymru i ddeall a chydnabod 
gwrth-semitiaeth gyfoes. Bydd hyn o gymorth i sicrhau bod llai o gyflawnwyr yn cael 
llonydd i fod yn wrth-Semitaidd.

PENDERFYNWYD:      Bod Pwyllgor y Cabinet Cydraddoldeb yn ystyried y diffiniad 
gweithredol i’w fabwysiadu gan Gyngor Bwrdeistref Sirol Pen-y-
bont ar Ogwr. 

37. ADRODDIAD DIWEDDARU AR UNO FFORWM CYDRADDOLDEB A GRŴP 
CYDLYNIAD CYMUNEDOL PEN-Y-BONT AR OGWR  (FFORWM CYDLYNIAD 
CYMUNEDOL A CHYDRADDOLDEB PEN-Y-BONT AR OGWR ERBYN HYN)

Rhoddodd y Rheolwr Ymgynghori, Ymgysylltu a Chydraddoldeb y diweddaraf ar 
gynnydd uniad Grŵp Fforwm Cydraddoldeb a Chydlyniad Cymunedol Pen-y-bont ar 
Ogwr.

Page 3

Agenda Item 3



PWYLLGOR Y CABINET CYDRADDOLDEB - DYDD LLUN, 19 TACHWEDD 2018

2

Rhoddodd resymau a nodau’r uniad i’r Pwyllgor. Roedd presenoldeb yn y ddau grŵp yn 
isel a chan fod rhai o’r un unigolion a grwpiau ynghlwm, penderfynwyd archwilio mantais 
uno’r ddau. Roedd y rhesymau eraill yn cynnwys rhannu cyfrifoldebau ymhlith llawer o’r 
mynychwyr, ystyried dull ar y cyd gyda Chydlyniad Cymunedol ac adolygiad pellach o 
Amodau Gorchwyl Fforwm Cydraddoldeb Pen-y-bont ar Ogwr.

Esboniodd fod cyfarfod cwmpasu cychwynnol wedi’i gynnal ar 1 Chwefror 2018 a 
fynychwyd gan gynrychiolwyr y ddau grŵp. Cynhaliwyd y cydgyfarfod cyntaf ar 27 Ebrill 
2018 lle cytunwyd y trefniadau Cadeirio ac Ysgrifenyddiaeth a’r Amodau Gorchwyl. 
Cynhaliwyd dau gyfarfod pellach ym mis Gorffennaf a Hydref 2018, gyda’r nod i bob 
cyfarfod gael prif agenda lle derbynnir cyflwyniad sy’n berthnasol i’r mynychwyr. Mae’r 
Grŵp wedi cael cyflwyniadau ar Ymgyrch Gwarchod (Operation Guardian) – Llinellau 
Sirol, ymwybyddiaeth o Droseddau Casineb a rôl a gwaith yr Ymddiriedolaeth Cefnogi 
Ieuenctid Ethnig. Mae presenoldeb yn y grŵp wedi cynyddu a chred y mynychwyr fod y 
cyfarfodydd yn fwy ystyrlon a boddhaus ac maen nhw’n credu hefyd iddynt elwa ers yr 
uniad. Bydd y cyfarfod nesaf yn trafod lles a bydd yn cael ei gynnal ym mis Ionawr 2019.

Mae Heddlu De Cymru hefyd wedi darparu adroddiad a gyflwynwyd yn flaenorol i’r Grŵp 
Cydlyniad Cymunedol a ddarparodd ffigurau troseddau casineb, y defnydd o’r ffigurau ar 
drais yn erbyn menywod a merched, stopio a chwilio a chwynion a godwyd yn erbyn yr 
heddlu ac ymddygiad yr heddlu.

Gofynnodd Aelod o’r Pwyllgor a wnaed y Cynghorau Tref a Chymuned yn ymwybodol o’r 
grŵp ac a oes modd iddynt fod ynghlwm.   

Credodd y Rheolwr Ymgynghori, Ymgysylltu a Chydraddoldeb y dylai Cynghorau Tref a 
Chymuned fod yn ymwybodol o’r grŵp a byddai’n ysgrifennu atynt yn eu gwahodd i 
fynychu ac yn sicrhau bod adroddiadau a chofnodion ar gael iddynt er mwyn gweld a 
fyddai ganddynt ddiddordeb mewn mynychu. Credai y byddai o fantais cyrraedd cynifer 
o sefydliadau â phosibl.

Gofynnodd Aelodau’r Pwyllgor a ellid gwahodd BAVO, grwpiau Cyfeillgar i Ddementia a 
Iaith Gymraeg i’r grŵp er mwyn i’r grŵp allu cael cyrhaeddiad mwy o faint. Datganodd y 
Rheolwr Ymgynghori, Ymgysylltu a Chydraddoldeb fod angen annog aelodaeth mor 
eang â phosibl i fod ynghlwm â’r grŵp. Mae BAVO eisoes wedi cytuno i fynychu 
cyfarfodydd y dyfodol.    

Gofynnodd Aelod a osodwyd unrhyw dargedau am bresenoldeb ar gyfer y grŵp newydd 
ei uno. Datganodd y Rheolwr Ymgynghori, Ymgysylltu a Chydraddoldeb nad oes targed 
penodol ar gyfer y niferoedd sy’n bresennol ond roedd angen sicrhau bod gan y grŵp 
bresenoldeb eang.
Gofynnodd y Rheolwr Ymgynghori, Ymgysylltu a Chydraddoldeb i’r Pwyllgor a oedd 
ganddo ddull roedd yn ei ffafrio o dderbyn cyfathrebiadau gan y grŵp. Gofynnodd yr 
Aelodau am gael adroddiad blynyddol y grŵp oherwydd dyna fyddai’r ffordd fwyaf llawn 
gwybodaeth a manteisiol o gael gwybodaeth.

Gofynnodd Aelod o’r Pwyllgor a ellid sefydlu cyfleuster trwy ModernGov a allai 
ddosbarthu’r adroddiad blynyddol i bob Aelod, yn ogystal â mynychwyr y Fforwm 
Cydlyniad a Chydraddoldeb, fel ag y gwneir gyda’r dogfennau agenda. Dywedodd yr 
Uwch Swyddog Gwasanaethau Democrataidd y byddai hynny’n bosibl a byddai’r Tîm yn 
edrych ar y ffordd fwyaf effeithiol o wneud hyn trwy weithio gyda’r Tîm Cyfathrebu.

PENDERFYNWYD:     Bod Pwyllgor y Cabinet Cydraddoldeb yn nodi’r adroddiad.

38. ADRODDIAD DIWEDDARU AR WEITHREDU MESUR YR IAITH GYMRAEG (CYMRU) 
2011 A SAFONAU’R GYMRAEG

Page 4



PWYLLGOR Y CABINET CYDRADDOLDEB - DYDD LLUN, 19 TACHWEDD 2018

3

Diweddarodd y Rheolwr Cyfathrebu, Marchnata ac Ymgysylltu’r Pwyllgor ar weithrediad 
Mesur yr Iaith Gymraeg (Cymru) 2011 a Safonau’r Gymraeg.

Derbyniodd y Pwyllgor wybodaeth hefyd am grynodeb o’r penderfyniadau terfynol.   

Rhoddodd y Rheolwr Cyfathrebu, Marchnata ac Ymgysylltu wybod i’r Pwyllgor nad yw’r 
awdurdod bellach yn cael ei herio mewn perthynas â’r Safonau gan fod llawer ohonynt 
wedi’u diwallu. Rhoddwyd estyniad i safon rhif 52 a 60 hefyd.

Gofynnodd Aelod a gafwyd unrhyw ddiweddariadau ar y cwynion a godwyd yn y cyfarfod 
blaenorol, a pham y mae rhai cwynion wedi cymryd amser i’w datrys.

Dywedodd y Rheolwr Cyfathrebu, Marchnata ac Ymgysylltu na fu unrhyw ddatblygiadau 
gan eu bod nhw’n parhau. Y rheswm y mae rhai wedi cymryd mwy o amser i’w datrys 
yw oherwydd maen nhw wedi’u trosglwyddo i Gomisiynydd y Gymraeg. Dywedodd 
petai’r cwynion hyn wedi dod yn syth i CBSP, bydden nhw wedi’u datrys yn hawdd o 
fewn cyfnod byrrach gan fod rhaid i Gomisiynydd y Gymraeg fynd trwy broses 
ymchwiliadol hwy.

Gofynnodd Aelod o’r Pwyllgor a oedd modd dynodi pwy yn y dderbynfa oedd yn medru’r 
Gymraeg.

Esboniodd y Rheolwr Cyfathrebu, Marchnata ac Ymgysylltu fod modd dynodi staff sy’n 
medru’r Gymraeg trwy fathodyn sydd ynghlwm â chortynnau gwddf y staff.

Gofynnodd Aelod beth yw’r broses os cefnogir cwyn am beidio â gweithredu’r Gymraeg.   

Esboniodd y Rheolwr Cyfathrebu, Marchnata ac Ymgysylltu ei fod yn dibynnu ar natur y 
gŵyn. Fel rheol, os nad oedd yn ddifrifol, bydd Swyddfa Comisiynydd y Gymraeg yn rhoi 
gwybod i CBSP fod rhywbeth o’i le ac yn gofyn i’r Cyngor ei newid. Os ydy’r gŵyn yn fwy 
difrifol, yna gallai’r Comisiynydd gyhoeddi dirwy. Gallent ofyn am roi cynllun gweithredu 
at ei gilydd i sicrhau nad yw’r un broblem yn digwydd yn y dyfodol. 

PENDERFYNWYD:     Bod Pwyllgor Cydraddoldeb y Cabinet yn nodi’r adroddiad.

39. STRATEGAETH Y GYMRAEG: ADRODDIAD DIWEDDARU BLYNYDDOL

Diweddarodd y Rheolwr Ymgynghori, Ymgysylltu a Chydraddoldeb y Pwyllgor ar y 
gwaith a wnaed i fodloni Strategaeth Gymraeg Pum Mlynedd 2016-2021, sydd yn ei hail 
flwyddyn ers iddi gael ei chyflwyno. 

Esboniodd y bydd y cynllun yn llunio adroddiad blynyddol sy’n gwerthuso popeth a 
newidiwyd neu a roddwyd ar waith bob blwyddyn. 

Ar ddiwedd y 5 mlynedd, bydd y Cyngor wedyn:
 yn asesu i ba raddau y mae wedi dilyn y strategaeth ac wedi cyrraedd y targed;

yn cyhoeddi asesiad ar ei wefan, sy’n cynnwys:
 nifer y siaradwyr Cymraeg yn ardal Pen-y-bont ar Ogwr ac oedrannau’r siaradwyr 

hynny;
 rhestr o weithgareddau a drefnwyd neu a ariannwyd yn ystod y pum mlynedd er 

mwyn hyrwyddo’r defnydd o’r Gymraeg

Esboniodd fod y Cynllun Strategol Cymraeg mewn Addysg ar gyfer eleni wedi’i 
gymeradwyo ym mis Gorffennaf a bydd yn cael ei gyhoeddi gyda’r diwygiadau’n fuan. 

Page 5



PWYLLGOR Y CABINET CYDRADDOLDEB - DYDD LLUN, 19 TACHWEDD 2018

4

Caeodd y Siop Siarad yn ddiweddar a bydd yn cael ei thynnu oddi ar y wefan dysgu a 
datblygu. 

Codwyd ymwybyddiaeth o’r Gymraeg yn y gweithle gyda dau fodiwl e-ddysgu newydd a 
chynhelir gweithdai cwrdd a chyfarch ar gyfer staff. Cynigir rhaglen hyfforddiant y 
Gymraeg i weithwyr ar 3 lefel. Roedd gwaith yn mynd rhagddo gydag YGG Llangynwyd 
ar recriwtio prentisiaid oedd yn medru’r Gymraeg. Roedd hon yn broses gadarnhaol 
gyda 2 swydd Cymraeg yn hanfodol newydd yn cael eu llenwi. Mae bellach gyfanswm o 
6 phrentis sy’n medru’r Gymraeg yn CBSP.

Esboniodd fod y cais Grant Cyfalaf cyfrwng Cymraeg o £2.6m wedi’i gymeradwyo gan 
Lywodraeth Cymru’n ddiweddar a bydd yn ymestyn dros bedair ysgol gynradd ym 
Metws, Cwm Ogwr, Porthcawl a Thref Pen-y-bont ar Ogwr.

Esboniodd hefyd y bu dirywiad bach yn nifer y myfyrwyr Cynradd i Uwchradd mewn 
Ysgolion Cymraeg. Bwriadwyd edrych ar y rhesymau y tu cefn i hyn ac annog rhieni i 
annog eu plant i barhau gydag addysg cyfrwng Cymraeg. 

Crybwyllodd Aelod o’r Pwyllgor ei fod yn deall pam y gallai cynifer o blant gael eu hatal 
rhag parhau i’r ysgol uwchradd oherwydd bod y cynnydd yn yr anhawster dysgu yn 
eithaf arwyddocaol a dylai’r awdurdod annog rhieni a sicrhau bod eu plant yn cael yr holl 
gefnogaeth y mae arnynt ei hangen.

Dywedodd y Rheolwr Cyfathrebu, Marchnata ac Ymgysylltu eu bod yn bwriadu gwneud 
hynny hefyd, yn ogystal ag annog myfyrwyr i’r 6ed dosbarth gan fod swm y disgyblion 
wedi cynyddu ar gyfer Cymraeg mamiaith yn ogystal ag ail iaith.

Gofynnodd Aelod a allem gysylltu gydag ysgolion a cholegau i sicrhau nad yw 
prentisiaid sy’n medru’r Gymraeg yn cael eu gofyn i gyflawni cyfieithiadau ysgrifenedig. 
Datganodd y Rheolwr Cyfathrebu, Marchnata ac Ymgysylltu bod fframwaith ar waith i 
sicrhau y dylai unrhyw gyfieithiad ffurfiol fynd at gyfieithydd allanol gyda chymwysterau 
ffurfiol.

PENDERFYNWYD:     Bod Pwyllgor Cydraddoldeb y Cabinet yn nodi’r adroddiad.

40. EITEMAU BRYS

Dim

Page 6



BRIDGEND COUNTY BOROUGH COUNCIL

REPORT TO CABINET EQUALITIES COMMITTEE 

26 MARCH 2019

REPORT OF THE INTERIM CHIEF EXECUTIVE

DOMESTIC ABUSE – OLDER PEOPLE AND PERPETRATOR UPDATE

1. Purpose of Report.

1.1 The purpose of this report is to provide an update as requested by the Cabinet 
Equalities Committee on domestic abuse and older people;  and the perpetrator 
intervention (Choices) in Bridgend.  

2. Connection to Corporate Improvement Objectives/Other Corporate Priorities

2.1 This report assists in the achievement of the following corporate priority/priorities:-  

1. Smarter use of resources – ensuring that all its resources (financial, 
physical, human and technological) are used as effectively and efficiently as 
possible and support the development of resources throughout the 
community that can help deliver the Council’s priorities. 

3. Background.

3.1 The Violence Against Women, Domestic Abuse and Sexual Violence (Wales) Act 
2015 requires relevant authorities to work to improve the arrangements for the 
prevention; protection; and support of gender-based violence, domestic abuse and 
sexual violence. 

 
3.2 Bridgend provides a robust range of services for victims of domestic abuse in order 

to protect victims, prevent abuse and violence and support those affected by 
domestic abuse using a trauma-informed approach and to aid the recovery process.  

3.3 Anybody can be a victim of domestic abuse irrespective of their age, sexuality, sex, 
(dis)ability, ehthnicity, cultural or religious beliefs and nobody should be subjected 
to abuse and violence.  It is further a violation of human rights and is an abhorrent 
and insidious crime that affects children and adults alike and will not be tolerated in 
Bridgend.

3.4 Perpetrator – 2017-2018, the Assia Suite supported 973 female victims of abuse 
(compared to 153 male victims).  There are a number of theories why people 
become abusers such as, learned behaviour  - witnessed abuse and violence in the 
home while growing up, power and control, ACEs (Adverse Childhood 
Experiences).  There would be no victims without perpetrators and it is recognized 
nationally and locally that to protect and assist victims a perpetrator intervention is 
paramount.  Perpetrators are often serial in nature using abusive tactics in all their 
relationships  which  can result in  multiple victims, multiple child victims with long-

Page 7

Agenda Item 4



lasting effects through society.  It is recognized that in order to keep victims and 
children safe and to minimize the long term effects of living in situations of domestic 
abuse (ACE agenda) for children and victims, it is fundamental that the destructive 
behaviours of perpetrators are also addressed.   In order to assist victims, 
perpetrators and children living within households where abuse and violence exists, 
a perpetrator intervention called ‘Choices’ is funded by the local authority.  The 
Choices programme is delivered by Calan DVS (Domestic Violence Service).  

3.5 The model is based on a male perpetrator and female victim model,  The 
intervention programme in Bridgend is an accredited programme (respect  
accredited)  with a number of different key officers.  It is important to take a whole 
family approach to service delivery and as perpetrators are complex the safety of 
the victim and children need to be the primary focus.  A woman’s safety worker 
supports the victim during the intervention and up to 6 months after the intervention 
has ceased, while two facilitators deliver the programme over a  32 week period.  It 
is a lengthy programme and perpetrators have to recognize their abusive behaviour 
and want to change it.  Unfortunately not all are suitable for the intervention and 
1:2:1 in depth assessments are undertaken over a five week period to ascertain 
suitability.  If the intervention is not appropriate for the perpetrator then techniques 
to reduce harm are provided during the assessment process.  

3.6 Statistics for the Choices Intervention (from July 2018 – present) – Appendix 1 
contains further information.

3.7 Older people – are a vulnerable group and violence and abuse occurring within this 
cohort is under-reported.  Older people can have different vulnerability factors that 
are age-associated such as disability, health issues, mobility problems, etc. The 
perpetrator may also be the older persons care giver and administer medication or 
withdraw their care and medication. SafeLives recognizes this vulnerable cohort 
and further requires MARACs (Multi-agency Risk Assessment Conferences) to 
monitor the numbers of older people entering the MARAC (Multi-agency Risk 
Assessment) process.  National MARAC data analysis on high risk MARAC victims 
highlights show victims aged 61+ are:

  7 times more likely to experience abuse from an adult family member than those 60 
and under.

 More likely to experience abuse from a current intimate partner than those 60 and 
under.

 Older victims (68%) are less likely to attempt to leave their perpetrator in the year 
before accessing help than those 60 and under (27%).

Commence date: July 2018-present
Number of referrals received 26

Number undertaking the 
intervention

11
Males
Only

Number of children 
supported (of perpetrator 
and/or victim)

14 47 sessions – participating age range 5-16 years

Number of ex/partners 
supported 

11 58 1-2-1 sessions

Page 8



 Older victims are 3.5 times more likely than those below 60 to be living with the 
perpetrator after getting support.

 Older victims are significantly more likely to have a disability – for a third, this is 
physical (34%).

3.8
Profile of clients 60 and under Over 60 
Perpetrator is current 
partner 

28% 40% 

Male clients 4% 21% 
Adult family member 
is the primary 
perpetrator 

6% 44% 

Multiple perpetrators 9% 7% 
Attempted to leave 
the perpetrator 

68% 27% 

Average length of 
abuse 

4 years 6.5 years 

Physical abuse 69% 69% 
Sexual abuse 25% 10% 
Harassment and 
stalking 

73% 57% 

Jealous and 
controlling behaviours 

83% 73% 

Source: Safe Lives, 2019

3.9 Bridgend Data Snapshot

Older People and Domestic Abuse (60+)

Standard and 
Medium Risk

2017-2018 
(Apr - Mar)

2018-2019  
(Apr – Jan)

Number of 
victims

64
45 female
19 male

69
52 female
17 male

High Risk 2015 2016 2017 2018
Number of 
victims

6 10 17 12

An older person is defined as over 60 years of age.

2016-2017 – victims aged 55+ was 23 – data collection methodology changed in 
2017.

Further supporting information is contained within Appendix 2 of this document.  

3.10 Domestic abuse and older people is a priority for the ‘Older People’s Commissioner 
Wales’ along with Bridgend County Borough Council referring to the ‘Aging Well in 
Bridgend’ information platform for mature citizens.                                                 
(link: http://www.ageingwellbridgend.co.uk/).

Page 9



4. Current situation / proposal.  

4.1 In order to address the issue of older people and domestic abuse, the Community 
Safety Partnership undertakes domestic abuse awareness raising sessions on a 
weekly basis.  This engagement work has been undertaken in urban, rural and 
valley locations – Garw Valley; Maesteg and Caerau, Nantymoel  with older people 
in mind and how and where they are likely to access services and spaces, such as, 
the bus station in Bridgend town centre, during the day time in a variety of 
supermarkets, in Civic offices, YMCA in Porthcawl, slimming clubs in the evenings, 
Princess of Wales Hospital, Caerau Community Centre and Young at Heart 
(cancelled due to the snow but will be re-arranged) along with other intelligence-led 
community locations. Links are well established to the ‘Local Community 
Coordinators’. 

4.2 To accommodate older people, the Assia Suite will undertake domestic abuse 
assessments and offer support to older victims in a location of their choice and one 
that is suitable to them during a time that also suits their needs.  

Support can include:

o Support in the community
o Target hardening 
o Police Watch/Coccoon Watch/property markers
o Personal alarms
o Identifying abuse – 

financial/economic/emotional/psychological/sexual/physical
o Housing-related support including refuge
o Safety advice

This can be at a time when the perpetrator is not at home, at a day centre that they 
attend, GP or hospital appointment, for example.  Assia Suite staff will collect the 
victim and bring them to a safe place or to Civic to provide them with support based 
on their needs and level of risk.  The service is flexible in its approach to service 
delivery with the service user at the heart of the service.  Equality is mainstreamed 
into the domestic abuse services,  for example, to take into account the different 
needs of the older population and the experiences and difficulties they face due to 
their age, mobility and age-related illnesses.  Should an older victim be engaged 
with Adult Services, support workers will work jointly to assist the victim.

4.3 The high risk IDVA (Independent Domestic Violence Advocates) will be an advocate 
for older victims through the criminal justice system and the Crown Prosecution 
Service will arrange transport to and from court upon request.  This applies to any 
risk level and the Specialist Domestic Violence Court (SDVC) is held in Cardiff 
every Monday.  

 
5. Effect upon Policy Framework & Procedure Rules.

5.1 There will be no direct effect on the Policy Framework & Procedure Rules.

6. The Equalities Impact Assessments

Page 10



6.1 The work undertaken by this service is in line with the Authorities duties under the 
Equalities Act. If necessary, assessments will be undertaken on a case by case 
basis. 

7. Well-being of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015 Assessment

7.1 The wellbeing goals identified in the Act were considered in the preparation of this 
report.  It is considered that there will be no significant or unacceptable impacts 
upon the achievements of the wellbeing goals or objectives.

8. Financial Implications.

8.1 There are no financial implications identified as this is an information/update report.

9. Recommendation.

9.1 The Cabinet Equalities Committee notes the update in relation to the requested 
submission/update and progress made. 

Mark Shephard 
Interim Chief Executive – Chief Executive’s Directorate.
Date: 26 March 2019 

10. Contact Officer:

Bethan Lindsey-Gaylard
Violence Against Women, Domestic Abuse and Sexual Violence Strategic Manager

Telephone: (01656) 679580

E-mail: Bethan.Lindsey-Gaylard@Bridgend.gov.uk  

Postal Address
Bridgend Police Station
Brackla Street
Bridgend CF31 1BZ

Background documents  

Appendix 1 - Supporting document attached – perpetrator update from Calan 
DVS.

Appendix 2 - Supporting document attached – Safe Lives Older People.

Page 11

mailto:Bethan.Lindsey-Gaylard@bridgend.gov.uk


This page is intentionally left blank



Confidential 
Calan DVS – Choices outcome report’19-’20 

1 | P a g e  
 

 

   

Choices report content 

Content:  

1. Introduction…………………….…….…………………………………………………..… 2 
2. Choices programme summary…………………………………………………………... 3 
3. Choices programme delivery – Assessments Males………………………………….. 4 
4. Choices programme delivery – Males…………………………………………………... 5 
5. Choices programme delivery – Survivors and CYP…………………………………… 5 
6. Choices participants data………………………………………………………………… 6 
7. Male participants feedback………………………………………………………………. 6 
8. Survivor feedback…………………………………………………………………………. 7 
9. Choices referral partner feedback………………………………………………………. 8 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 13



Confidential 
Calan DVS – Choices outcome report’19-’20 

2 | P a g e  
 

 

  1. Introduction 

Research clearly demonstrates the devastating impact that living with DA has on family 
members.  
 
The evidence from Domestic Homicide Reviews is that agencies are poor at identifying 
levels of risk and the biennial and triennial reviews of ‘Serious Cases’ have identified that the 
rate of child death and serious harm as a result of DA in families has not reduced over the 
last 10 years. 
 
The effects of domestic abuse on victims are widespread and will vary depending on the 
typology of abuse.  
 
Typically victims will experience fear, uncertain of when the next abusive encounter will 
begin. It is common for a victim to suffer a loss of self-esteem and become isolated from 
friends or family. Participants on previous programmes have reported anxiety and 
depression or other mental health conditions resulting from their abuse. Victims often report 
feeling conflicting emotions relating to self-blame, anger or resentment. 
 
An estimated 1.9 million adults aged 16 to 59 years experienced domestic abuse in the last 
year, according to the year ending March 2017 Crime Survey for England and Wales (1.2 
million women, 713,000 men). 
 
The police recorded 1.1 million domestic abuse-related incidents and crimes in the year 
ending March 2017 and of these, 46% were recorded as domestic abuse-related crimes; 
domestic abuse-related crimes recorded by the police accounted for 32% of violent crimes. 
 
Children exposed to domestic abuse are also known to be at far greater risk of ACEs related 
outcomes. 
 
It is widely accepted that DA is over represented in Children’s Social Care resulting in a 
significant and disproportionate demand on resources. 
 
Numerous initiatives over the last 15 years have had a positive impact in identifying 
domestic abuse, however ‘whole family’ approaches to the problem remain rare.  
 
At Calan DVS we appreciate how DA affects all family members and believe our ‘whole 
family’ approach through The Choices Programme, meets a significant need for those 
directly affected and for public services tasked with managing risk. 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 14



Confidential 
Calan DVS – Choices outcome report’19-’20 

3 | P a g e  
 

 

  2. Choices programme summary 

 

The Choices programme has been developed to comply with the most recent national 

standards to ensure the safety of women and children.   

 

The programme is offered by Calan DVS within Bridgend County for male perpetrators of 

abuse within heterosexual relationships.  

 

The purpose of the programme is to challenge and support perpetrators of abuse to cease 

their violence and abusive behaviour and to develop a respectful and responsible attitude 

towards those around them and themselves. 

 

Choices is used to support change and understanding of past behaviours and abuse from 

men towards women.  The programme aims of teaching ways of being non-abusive, whilst 

taking perpetrators through a step by step and highly structured programme and supporting 

them to understand they are accountable for their actions.  

  

As a programme Choices covers multiple topics and areas of abusive behaviour including: 

 Respect within a relationship 

 Gender 

 Parenting 

 Emotional Intimacy 

 Sexual Respect 

 Support and Trust 

 

The Programme is delivered in accordance to RESPECT accreditation standards and 

facilitated over a 28 week period. (5 weeks for one to one assessments and 23 weeks for 

group work).  

 

In addition to the male programme, the Choices programme also works with the survivors 

and children within these relationships. These services are offered to the survivors once a 

male signs and agree to the terms of our participation agreement. 

 

Calan’s aim is to work with all of those affected in past or current abusive relationships to 

support and to help each move towards more positive outcomes in the future. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 15



Confidential 
Calan DVS – Choices outcome report’19-’20 

4 | P a g e  
 

 

   

3. Choices programme delivery – Assessments Males  

The 1:2:1 assessment for alleged perpetrators is delivered over the course of 3-5 one hour 

assessments (dependent on the male’s engagement).  As part of the delivery, the Choices 

team complete a risk assessment; discuss attendance guidelines and the expected 

behaviour code. 

The framework of the 1:2:1 assessments covers: 

  

When complete the male perpetrator is then assigned as either suitable or not suitable for 

group work. Throughout this process the assessments are video recorded in Bridgend 

Council offices which is relayed to the perpetrator. This is for programme facilitators to be 

evaluated later on during supervision. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Assessment 
1 

• Overview of the Choices programme 

• Choices programme attendance guidelines 

• Choices programme behaviour code 

• Risk Assessment 

• Choices Programme Participitation Agreement 

Assessment 
2 

• Abuse Checklist DVPP Assessment (covering Psychological, Financial, Sexual, Physical Abuse and Intimidation) 

• Caada DASH (Domestic Abuse Stalking and Harrassment), Risk Identification Checklist 

• Injuries Inventory DVPP 

• Harrassment Inventory DVPP 

Assessment 
3 

• My Children's Exposure to Fights/Domestic Violence 

• Self Talk 

• Pracising Positive Self- Talk 

• Calming Techniques (TIME OUTS, Calming Exercises) 

 

Assessment 
4 

• Conflict Lof 

Assessment 
5 

• Avoidance of responsbility 

• Safety Plan 

Page 16



Confidential 
Calan DVS – Choices outcome report’19-’20 

5 | P a g e  
 

 

   

4. Choices programme delivery – Males  

RESPECT accreditation standards are followed closely by the Choices team in order to 

deliver the programme as effectively as possible. Throughout Calan’s delivery we aim for the 

RESPECT outcomes where we see a reduction in perpetrator’s violent and abusive 

behaviour, an increase in survivor’s safety, well being and freedom, improvement in 

children’s well being and safety, improvement in multiagency work and the effective targeting 

of interventions.  

The programme does have a degree of flexibility and as such the team can add research 

and activities they find appropriate based on the dynamics and needs of the groups. The 

Choices team carry out additional research to obtain an evidence base and examples which 

is incorporated into the session lesson plans.  It is paramount that the perpetrators continue 

to engage with an amount of humility and whilst accepting of circumstances, acknowledge 

their actions as solely there own. 

The Group Work Modules include: 

 Respect 

 Gender  

 Parenting 

 Emotional Intimacy 

 Sexual Respect 

 Support and Trust 

 

5. Choices programme delivery – Survivors and Children 

The delivery of the programme for survivors and children incorporates elements of the 

framework to introduce the different forms of abuse and to support in safeguarding the 

service users from abuse.  

The women accessing the programme are proactively offered: 

 Ongoing support (for up to 6 months after the perpetrator has completed programme) 

 Face to face or telephone support 

 Risk assessment and safety planning 

 Signposting to specialist services 

 Parenting input and support 

 Awareness raising about the nature of domestic abuse 

 Emotional support 

The Choices programme has dedicated Children and Young Persons (CYP) worker, 

Women’s safety officer and a Family Mediation officer therefore ensuring effective support to 

the whole family.  

 

Page 17



Confidential 
Calan DVS – Choices outcome report’19-’20 

6 | P a g e  
 

 

  6. Choices – Participants data and feedback 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Perpetrator feedback 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

Page 18



Confidential 
Calan DVS – Choices outcome report’19-’20 

7 | P a g e  
 

 

   

Survivor feedback 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 19



Confidential 
Calan DVS – Choices outcome report’19-’20 

8 | P a g e  
 

 

   

7. Choices – Referral partner feedback 

 100% of partners stated that they found the support from the Choices programme as 

beneficial and that they were happy with the referral process. 

 100% of partners stated that the referral was received and actioned within a 

reasonable timeframe. 

 100% of partners said that they would recommend Choices to their colleague and 

other agencies. 

“Excellent communication from the Choices service which supports better working together 

between agencies” 

“Staff are incredibly approachable for staff and myself” 

“The Choices programme itself is excellent and a much needed service for the area” 

“The Service user stated that he found the support from the Choices programme beneficial 

and he now sees how his behaviours caused difficulties in his relationship with his wife and 

son, also causing them emotional problems” 

“I would highly recommend this service and am thankful for the support and intervention and 

support the Choices team have provided this family” 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 20



P
age 21



T
his page is intentionally left blank



BRIDGEND COUNTY BOROUGH COUNCIL

REPORT TO CABINET COMMITTEE EQUALITIES

26 MARCH 2019

JOINT REPORT OF THE CORPORATE DIRECTOR, SOCIAL SERVICES and 
WELLBEING and the CORPORATE DIRECTOR, EDUCATION AND FAMILY SUPPORT

MENTAL HEALTH SERVICES IN BRIDGEND

1.0 Purpose of Report

1.1 To provide the Committee with information on the range of services across the 
county borough.  The report will seek to describe the:

 Collaboration between the Bridgend County Borough Council (BCBC) and 
health;

 Collaboration between BCBC and the third sector;
 Recent changes or development in provision;
 Any future work and planned changes to provision. 

2.0 Connection to Corporate Plan

2.1 This report assists in the achievement of the following corporate priorities:-

 Helping people to be more self-reliant – taking early steps to reduce or 
prevent people from becoming vulnerable or dependent on the Council and its 
services.

 Smarter use of resources – ensuring that all its resources (financial, physical, 
human and technological) are used as effectively and efficiently as possible and 
support the development of resources throughout the community that can help 
deliver the Council’s priorities.

3.0 Background

Population of people with mental health problems.

3.1 The Welsh Health Survey (2012) states that in Bridgend, 13% of adult respondents 
report being treated for a mental health illness.  The survey also highlighted that in 
Wales a higher percentage of women (14%) than men (8%) report being treated for 
a mental illness. 

3.2 In Wales, 1 in 4 adults will experience some kind of mental health problem or illness 
within their lifetime and 2 in 100 people will have a severe mental illness such as 
Schizophrenia or Bipolar Disorder. 

3.3 The population assessment has indicated that there will be an increase in the 
prevalence of dementia in Bridgend County Borough. The Population of older adults 
65+ is predicted to increase by 48% by 2030, and it is well known that dementia is 
more common as people age; for example one in 14 people over 65 and one in 6 
people over 80 will have a form of dementia. This is likely to mean, that somewhere 

Page 23

Agenda Item 5



in the region of 3000 people aged over 65, will be living with dementia in Bridgend 
by 2030. 

3.4 The Office for National Statistics (2004) stated that 1 in 10 children and young 
people aged 5-16 had a clinically diagnosed mental health disorder, 4% an 
emotional disorder (anxiety or depression), 6% a conduct disorder, 2% hyperkinetic 
disorder, 1% a less common disorder (autism, eating disorder) with 2% having more 
than one disorder . Research suggests that 20% of children have a mental health 
problem in any given year and about 10% at any one time. The National Mental 
Health Strategy indicates that 1 in 10 children aged 5-16 has a mental health 
problem.

Mental Health Services 

3.5 The range of services across the county borough covers both adults and children 
and young people and includes Child and Adolescent Mental Health Services 
(CAMHS), dementia services, adult mental health and services for prisoners.

3.6 This definition of mental health problem, mental illness and mental ill health has 
been taken from the Western Bay Health and Social Care Programme Moving 
Forward Together: Joint Commitments for Mental Health 2015.       

Mental health problem: Emotional distress that may not constitute a mental illness 
but may be a predisposing factor to mental illness.
Mental illness: A diagnosable condition including both common mental health 
problems and severe and enduring mental health problems.
Mental ill health: A term which incorporates mental illness and mental health 
problems.

3.7 Typical mental health problems include:
 Anxiety and panic attacks;
 Depression;
 Eating problems;
 Obsessive Compulsive Disorder.
 Loneliness

3.8 Typical types of mental illness include:
 Bipolar disorder;
 Personality disorder;
 Post-traumatic stress disorder;
 Schizophrenia;
 Suicidal feelings.

Projection of need

3.9 The diagram below shows the predicted number of people in Bridgend with a 
mental health problem.  These predictions are based on projection data from 
Daffodil using information taken from the Welsh Health Survey.  Adult respondents 
were classified as having a mental health problem if they reported as currently 
being treated for depression, anxiety or ‘another mental illness’.

Page 24



Mental
Health

Population
2012

Adult
Population

2012

Mental
Health

Population
2015

Adult
Population

2015

Mental
Health

Population
2020

Adult
Population

2020

Mental
Health

Population
2025

Adult
Population

2025

Mental
Health

Population
2030

Adult
Population

2030

Aged 75 + 1,328 11,510 1,426 12,430 1,667 14,620 2,008 17,700 2,216 19530

Aged 65-74 1,382 14,370 1,500 15,580 1,549 16,100 1,570 16,340 1,787 18600

Aged 16-64 Mental Health/ 18-64 Adult Population 7,985 82,210 8,014 82,380 8,165 83,170 8,202 83,260 8,061 82,560

0

20,000

40,000

60,000

80,000

100,000

120,000

140,000

Comparison of Mental Health Population (aged 16+) and Adult Population (aged 18+) Projections up to 
2030

National context 

3.10 The Welsh Government strategy Together for Mental Health: A Strategy for Mental 
Health and Wellbeing in Wales and Delivery Plan: 2012-16 was launched in 
October 2012. This strategy covers all age groups and replaces previous age-
specific Welsh Government strategies and service frameworks. By introducing an 
all-age strategy, the aim is to promote fully integrated partnership working intended 
to improve mental health and wellbeing. The strategy has a solid emphasis on 
prevention and early intervention, in addition to setting out a framework for the 
provision of specialist mental health services for those who need them.

3.11 The strategy aims to improve outcomes for those who require mental health 
services, their carers and their families and improve the wellbeing of the wider 
population. It places the person at the centre of service delivery, emphasises the 
importance of partnership working and promotes a ‘recovery and enablement’ 
approach to help people to live independently and reach their full potential. The 
Strategy focuses on six outcomes:-

1. To improve whole population mental health and wellbeing;
2. To reduce the impact of mental health problems and/or mental illness on 

individuals, families, carers and their communities;
3. To reduce inequalities amongst people experiencing mental illness and mental 

health problems;
4. To increase the feeling of control that people in receipt of assessment, treatment 

services have over decisions made that affect them;
5. To improve the values, attitudes and behaviours of staff within the public, 

independent and Third Sector in relation to mental health and wellbeing. 

3.12 Mental Health (Wales) Measure 2010 - Places a legal duty on Local Health Boards 
and Local Authorities to the assessment and treatment of people with mental health 
problems and will improve access to independent mental health advocates. The 
Measure will result in an increase of services available within primary care, ensure 
that all patients receiving secondary services have a Care and Treatment plan, 
enable adults discharged from secondary services to refer themselves back into 

Page 25



services for assessment and provide opportunities for all in-patients to receive help 
from an independent mental health advocate if required.

3.13 Social Services and Wellbeing (Wales) Act 2014 - Aims to empower those in 
need of social care services and their carers and to promote their independence by 
affording them a stronger voice and giving them more control over the services they 
receive. The Act emphasises the promotion of equality, improvement of service 
quality and provision of information and stresses the need for commissioners to 
achieve a shared focus on prevention and early intervention. Key elements of the 
Act include:-
o Revised assessment, care planning and review arrangements;
o New ways of providing information, guidance and wellbeing support for the 

public;
o Strengthening early intervention, re-ablement and prevention services; 
o Further strengthening our work with and support for carers;
o Revising safeguarding arrangements;
o Strengthening Direct Payments arrangements;
o Promoting social enterprises, co-ops and the third sector in the provision of care, 

support and preventative services;

Local Context

3.14 The key considerations for adult mental health services in Bridgend are:

 Optimise opportunities for community networks and support systems; 
 Create a progression pathway model for accommodation and community based 

services, which promotes the recovery philosophy;
 Review current unscheduled care and crisis provision;
 Undertake a review of care coordination and Community Mental Health Teams 

(CMHTs).

3.15 The vision for the future of mental health services is ambitious.  Prioritisation of the 
objectives has taken into account the following factors:-
 Responding to the individual needs of people with a mental illness who 

potentially require Social services;
 Delivering statutory duties;
 Meeting national, local and regional objectives and performance targets;
 Effectively managing  resources;
 Putting in place service developments that enable the efficient and effective 

delivery of services in line with the councils Medium Term Financial Strategy;
  Collaboration between the authority, health and the third sector.

Dementia

3.16 As previously reported to Scrutiny in April 2018, Bridgend County Borough Council, 
in partnership with Abertawe Bro Morgannwg University (ABMU) Health Board and 
third sector, had previously developed a Dementia Strategy and Delivery Plan 2015. 
During the implementation of the plan there were a number of national changes and 
initiatives that impacted on how the plan should be delivered, the most of 
significance of which were the Social Services and Wellbeing (Wales) Act in April 
2014, and the Well-Being of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015, the development 

Page 26



of the National Dementia Vision for Wales 2016 and the development of the 
Together For Mental Health Delivery Plan 2016 – 2019. 

3.17 It was the intention of partners locally to revise the plan in the context of these 
changes, however further work on the Dementia Strategy was delayed by the 
decision to await the publication of Welsh Government’s Dementia Action Plan for 
Wales 2018 – 2022; this plan was published in February 2018 with the intention of 
delivering on Wales as a Dementia Friendly Nation.  The ambition of the plan was 
summed up by the Cabinet Secretary as follows:
“We have a clear vision for Wales to be a dementia friendly nation that recognises 
the rights of people with dementia to feel valued and to live as independently as 
possible in their communities.”
Vaughan Gething, Cabinet Secretary for Health and Social Services

3.18 Regionally, ABMU Health Board has brought together the Local Authorities and 
other stakeholder partners, to deliver a regional approach to older people’s mental 
health services; as well as supporting the development of local delivery boards in 
each local authority area. However with the Welsh Government announcement of 
the health board boundary change, the local authority has been minded that future 
planning for the provision and delivery of dementia services will need to be agreed 
in line with the ambitions of the Cwm Taf Morgannwg University Health Board.

3.19 The following statements from stakeholders and people with dementia have been 
adopted by Welsh Government as principles to underpin the Dementia Action Plan 
for Wales:
o We have the right to be recognised as who we are, to make choices about our 

lives including taking risks, and to contribute to society. Our diagnosis should not 
define us, nor should we be ashamed of it. 

o We have the right to continue with day-to-day and family life, without 
discrimination or unfair cost, to be accepted and included in our communities 
and not live in isolation or loneliness. 

o We have the right to an early and accurate diagnosis, and to receive evidence 
based, appropriate, compassionate and properly funded care and treatment, 
from trained people who understand us and how dementia affects us. This must 
meet our needs, wherever we live.

o We have the right to be respected, and recognised as partners in care, provided 
with education, support, services, and training which enables us to plan and 
make decisions about the future. 

o We have the right to know about and decide if we want to be involved in 
research that looks at cause cure and care for dementia and be supported to 
take part. 

3.20 Following consultation Welsh Government has structured the National Action Plan 
around outcomes which follow a pathway approach to dementia care. The planned 
outcomes are:
 Individuals will understand the steps they can take to reduce their risk, or delay 

the onset, of dementia. 
 The wider population understands the challenges faced by people living with 

dementia and are aware of the actions they can take to support them. 
 People are aware of the early signs of dementia; the importance of a timely 

diagnosis; and know where to go to get help. 

Page 27



 More people are diagnosed earlier, enabling them to plan for the future and 
access early support and care if needed. 

 Those diagnosed with dementia and their carers and families are able to receive 
person-centred care and support which is flexible. 

 Research is supported to help us better understand the causes and 
management of dementia and enables people living with dementia, including 
families and carers, to be co-researchers. 

 Staff have the skills to help them identify people with dementia and to feel 
confident and competent in supporting individual’s needs post-diagnosis. 

3.21 To support the delivery of the National Vision Welsh Government invested £10 
million from 2018/19 over three years, to support the delivery of the following key 
actions in this document, which include: 
 Developing ‘teams around the individual’ to provide additional support for people 

with dementia and their families and / or carers; 
 Reviewing and standardising the role of dementia support workers;
 Development of an All Wales Dementia Allied Health Practitioner Consultant 

post which will give advice and support to health boards and local authorities to 
drive forward service improvements;

 Increasing the rate and timeliness of dementia diagnosis;
 Strengthening collaborative working between social care and housing to enable 

people to stay in their homes longer;
 To roll out the ‘Good work – Dementia Learning and Development Framework’ 

to enable people who work with those living with dementia to have the skills to 
recognise symptoms earlier and help them feel confident and competent in 
caring for and supporting those living with dementia; 

 Introducing the principles of ‘John’s Campaign’ across all health boards and 
trusts.

Services to Prisoners

3.22 The Social Services and Wellbeing (Wales) Act 2014 came into effect on 6th April 
2016; and accordingly changed the Authority’s responsibilities for people in prison. 
Since April 2016, local authorities are responsible for addressing and meeting the 
care and support needs of all adults and children in the secure estate not just upon 
release but while they are in custody. This is a significant change and additional 
responsibility for the Authority as the Act applies equally to those in the secure 
estate as it does for those individuals in the community.

3.23 Welsh Government issued a Code of Practice that set out the requirements on 
Local Authorities in the exercise of their social services functions in respect of those 
being held in custody, bail accommodation and on release.

3.24 Bridgend County Borough Council has within its boundary, HMP and YOI Parc, 
which is a Category B Prison with capacity for 2000 male prisoners, the majority 
being adult offenders. The current population is 1779 (includes 62 in the Young 
Persons unit for people up to 18 years of age). The prison opened in November 
1997 and is the only private prison in Wales and is managed by G4S on behalf of 
the Prison Service. All offenders over the age of 18 are deemed to have ‘ordinary 
residence’ and the Council is responsible for meeting the care and support needs of 
individuals with eligible needs

Page 28



3.25 The responsibilities for the Local Authority, as required by the Social Services and 
Wellbeing (Wales) Act, 2014, are as follows;
 Completing care and support assessments for prisoners;
 Producing care and support plans (with prison and healthcare involvement);
 Providing care and support services for those with eligible needs;
 Specialist and moveable items (e.g. walking frames, hoists);
 When a prisoner is to be released, or transferred to a different prison, to work 

with the local authority that they are moving to, ensuring continuity of care and 
support.

Child and Adolescent Mental Health Services (CAMHS)
  

3.26 The performance of Child and Adolescent Mental Health Services has been a long-
standing area of concern across Wales. While the delivery of mental health services 
for children in Bridgend is primarily a responsibility of ABMU Health Board, there 
are elements of mental health support that necessarily are delivered by a full range 
of other services.  This is determined by the tiers of need.  The tiers of need 1-4 are 
briefly described below. 

3.27 Since April 2016, ABMU has taken a new approach to tackling the delivery of these 
mental health services. This is a tiered approach as set out in the diagram above. 

3.28 Many children will benefit from early help and support at some time in their 
childhood and some will require help from specialist mental health services. In 
addition to those young people with identified mental health needs, there are many 
more with early stage difficulties, including those living in situations that increase the 
risk of developing significant problems and who may benefit from receiving early 
support to actively promote good mental health. 

3.29 The key to good mental health, in children and young people, is a robust graduated 
approach involving the family in issues such as: a healthy birth, consistent, positive 
parenting, balanced nutrition and exercise, attainment at school, having friends and 
an ability to cope with life events. Children and young people with good mental 
health are able to develop emotionally, creatively and intellectually and have the 
resilience to cope with life’s difficulties. It is recognised that childhood experiences 

Page 29



impact significantly on the ability to be an effective and nurturing parent in the 
future.

Commissioned Services

3.30 There are a range of services commissioned by the Directorate for adult mental 
health services which include residential services, care and support at home in the 
community.    

4.0 Current Situation

Adult Mental Health Service Provision

4.1 The current model for mental health services in Bridgend is largely a result of 
incremental changes in service design in response to policy developments, local 
pressures and organisational transformations. There is recognition locally that there 
needs to be a greater investment in the development of a wider range of mental 
health services, for example the expansion of more community based help and 
support.  BCBC works in partnership with stakeholders to ensure that the services 
provided meets, and continue to meet, the changing needs of the population 
through effective planning and commissioning. 

4.2 Key components of the current model include:-
 Community Mental Health Teams (CMHT) is the main source of community 

mental health services.  They are at the core of the mental health system and 
are specialist, multidisciplinary, multiagency teams which provide mental health 
assessments and support to individuals accessing services. CMHT’s prioritise 
their work based on a persons need, risk, and vulnerability for whose complexity 
of care cannot be met within primary care services;

 The multi-disciplinary and multi-agency Home Treatment Team is set up to 
support people experiencing crisis in their own homes in order to avoid 
admission or readmission into mental health inpatient services;

 Outpatient consultant clinics to support people in the community;
 Structured day opportunities, psychological and psychotherapeutic interventions 

provided out of the ARC centre and in local community centres ; 
 The specialist Perinatal Response Management Service (PRAMS) for those 

experiencing significant stress and/or other mental ill health in pregnancy and up 
to a year after birth;

 A range of inpatient specialist services at Princess of Wales Hospital and 
Glanrhyd, including  assessment, respite, rehabilitation and long-stay beds;

 Residential and nursing care establishments for people with high or intensive 
support needs;

 Glyn Cynffig is supported accommodation that provides support and assistance 
to adults recovering from serious mental illness, including those with co-
occurring serious mental illness and substance misuse;

 Supported living accommodation providing supportive environments to enable 
people to live independently in the community; 

 Domiciliary care and floating support to providing personal and practical support 
in a person’s home;

 A range of voluntary sector services providing information, support, advocacy, 
and befriending for service users and carers.

Page 30



4.3 Below are some recent changes or development in provision:

New Approved Mental Health Professional (AMHP) Service in Bridgend

4.3.1 AMHPs are mental health professionals who have been approved by a local 
authority to carry out certain duties under the Mental Health Act. They are 
responsible for coordinating assessment and admission to hospital for people who 
have been detained (sectioned).  Doctors can make recommendations that 
someone should be detained in hospital but it is up to the AMHP to make the final 
decision. It is also the responsibility of the AMHP to ensure that the law is being 
applied correctly. 

4.3.2 BCBC are currently implementing a new daytime AMHP service that will act as a 
single point of access for the public, carers, GPs, NHS colleagues and the Local 
Authority for requests for Mental Health Act Assessments. The aim of the Hub is to 
provide a high quality, auditable AMHP service, that builds on the existing legal 
knowledge and specialisms within the current team of AMHPs’ embedded within the 
Mental Health and Learning Disability teams in BCBC. 

4.3.3 The Hub will offer short term support services for individuals with mental health 
issues and create a service for carers and families thus ensuring that the 
requirements of Social Services and Wellbeing Act are fulfilled.  Additionally, 
families who experience a loved one being detained will have a point of contact for 
advice, information and assistance following the event and during the period of 
detention. 

4.3.4 The AMHP Hub will link in closely with other agencies, both statutory and third 
sector to create a high quality AMHP service for citizens.  The Hub will be managed 
by the AMPH lead/Team Manager who will co-ordinate and oversee the AMHP 
service and lead on the development of a regional professional peer group. 

Review of Mental Health Social Work team

4.3.5 Mental health social work services in Bridgend are currently delivered via two 
separate Community Mental Health Teams (CMHT). A review completed in Spring 
2018 considered options for the most effective utilisation of resources provided by 
BCBC within mental health service provision. The review identified the following:

 Need to improve the Information, Advice and Assistance (IAA) service;
 Need to develop more prevention and early intervention services;
 Need to build stronger partnership working in primary mental health services;

4.3.6 In order to address these issues it was proposed that an element of the staffing 
resource currently allocated to the CMHTs would be moved into primary mental 
health service provision where a focus on provision of information, advice and 
assistance, prevention and early intervention and partnership working could be 
engendered. This proposal is currently in the consultation phase.

Service Development Plan

4.4 There is an Adult Mental Health Development Plan which covers all areas of 
service.  The plan is made up of a number of work streams each with a project lead 
who reports to the programme team.

Page 31



4.5 The key considerations in taking mental health services forward are set out below 
and overleaf:
   
 Over the last few decades there have been significant changes to the delivery of 

Mental Health services, not only in Bridgend but across the UK. Current models 
of support have moved away from traditional inpatient based care, which 
focused on ‘treatment’, towards multidisciplinary community based approaches 
that promotes the ‘recovery’ philosophy.

 There are many interpretations of the recovery philosophy but the underlying 
concept within the Mental Health (Wales) Measure 2010 is ‘the belief that it is 
possible for someone to maintain, gain or regain skills that help them to live as 
fulfilling a life as possible, despite serious mental illness’.

 There are a number of national, regional and local strategic drivers that have 
and continue to shape the development and delivery of mental health services.

4.6 Locally the plans for mental health services include an aim to work with 
stakeholders and partner organisations to reshape existing services in order to 
achieve the vision of providing person centred services that enable independence, 
maximise personal potential and are flexible and responsive to need, whilst 
ensuring effective use of funding available.

4.7 Below are some high level objectives which are planned to be taken forward over 
the next three years with partners in Cwm Taf Morgannwg and the Third sector:

Care Co-ordination  

 Continue to ensure that care plans and reviews are person centred;
 Build on current assessment processes to deliver clear outcome focused care 

planning that support the recovery approach and the progression pathway; 
 Work with colleagues in children’s services at earlier points to develop more 

effective transitions to adult services; 
 Promote positive approaches to risk taking with partner agencies and Service 

Users by building on current risk management approaches to enable 
independence and reduce the need for more intensive support whilst identifying 
and appropriately supporting those who are at increased risk of suicide, self-
harm, self-neglect and/or harm to others;

 Provide information to service users and carers so they can play an informed 
part in their Care and Treatment pathway;

Range of Care Models

 Develop a clear progression pathway through different models of support and 
accommodation, which provides alternatives to hospital admission and supports 
the recovery approach; 

 Work with the provider market and stakeholders to develop a wider choice of 
and increased access to ‘move on’ accommodation and housing related support 
models, including enabling, step down and floating support;

 Increase opportunities for people to receive support that enables them to 
remain in their own homes; 

Page 32



 Develop appropriate and specialist models of care to support those with 
complex needs and co-occurring conditions;

 Provide robust care pathways for those in crisis and develop a range of support 
models to ensure that those in crisis receive appropriate and timely responses;

 Develop preventative and specialist models that help people remain out of 
traditional care services and reduce the likelihood of crisis situations.

Independent Living

 Promote the development of local support networks in the community and 
prevent social isolation by maximising opportunities for local services to offer 
natural support networks;

 Continue to expand opportunities for individuals to develop life skills that 
promotes and enables independence;

 Improve opportunities for individuals to access training, education and work;
 Further develop ways to enable carers to continue in their caring role by 

providing appropriate information, advice and services.

Collaboration

 Respond to national policies and objectives, such as the implementation of the 
Social Services and Wellbeing (Wales) Act, the Mental Health (Wales) Strategy, 
the Cares Strategy (Wales) Measure and Together for Mental Health; 

 Seek further opportunities to pool budgets and align services to improve 
experiences for Service Users through the provision of coordinated care 
models;

 Work with colleagues in Supporting People to identify housing related support 
solutions in order to develop effective and sustainable community based lower 
level support and preventative services, which promote independence; 

 Optimise opportunities to identify and attract funding from partner agencies to 
further develop services.

Commissioning and Planning

 Implement clear mechanisms for improving the information flow from practice to 
commissioning so that practice knowledge informs commissioning activity;

 Carry out further development activity to ensure that the local market can 
respond to future demand;

 Strengthen engagement approaches so that service users and carers are 
involved in the planning, development and implementation of the services they 
require;

 Produce a robust and transparent market position statement that outlines our 
commissioning intentions to transform and shape services for the future.

Dementia

4.8 In 2019/20 the local authority will reinvigorate its implementation plans to deliver on 
the Welsh Government’s Dementia Action Plan for Wales 2018 – 2022, with its new 
health partners in Cwm Taf Morgannwg University health board. In the meantime 
work has been ongoing on reviewing short breaks for carers, and day opportunities 

Page 33



for people with complex needs; as well is the ongoing work to deliver a dementia 
friendly County Borough.

4.9 Specialist services for people with dementia within Bridgend County Borough 
include the following:
 A therapy led short term specialist reablement service known as Bridgeway.  

Individuals are able to access the service following a social work assessment of 
needs. 

 There are two Dementia Support workers which are funded from the Welsh 
Government grant known as the Integrated Care fund and are based in the 
Community Resource team.  This service provides support to those individuals 
that are either pre or early diagnosed with Dementia. 

 In addition, there is a well-established dementia coordinator service funded via 
ABM UHB and individuals access this service via a referral from a Consultant; 
people are followed up individually from clinic after their appointment.  It 
provides support service and includes a home visit element and an Information, 
Advice and Assistance service.  

 A specific social work team collocated with ABMU which is available for those 
individuals that are in the secondary mental health services with ABMU.  There 
are currently 160 individuals (26/02/19) on this team’s case load and is those 
individuals that present with complex needs which are overseen by a clinical 
professional.  

 In the integrated services which service mainly older adults, approximately 60% 
of individuals who are being supported have a presenting need that includes 
early stages of dementia and/or those that have been diagnosed with dementia 
but are able to live and manage in the community by receiving services from 
primary care and community based clinical support such as from a community 
psychiatric nurse (CPN) and services commissioned via a social worker.  

 In terms of day services, there is a specialist dementia unit located within the 
Bridgend Resource Centre based at Waterton in Bridgend. This specialist 
dementia service is for people who have moderate or advancing dementia; 
these are people who need higher levels of staffing support to meet their needs. 
They are usually people whose needs could not be met fully within a community 
based  resource or in a generic day service

 In terms of younger people with dementia, the council commissions specialist 
services to enable individuals to live and access community services; this 
includes flexible short break services to support people and their carers. 

 Dementia care training is provided in collaboration with the ABMU Dementia 
Care Training Team.  

 The two Extra care schemes in Bridgend are planned to be dementia friendly 
facilities with the environment designed to support individuals with dementia.  
These schemes include the creation of 25 residential EMI beds 

4.10 There are currently 127 people in specialist dementia residential placements at a 
forecast annual gross cost of £3.3m in 2018/19; in addition to the many people 
living with dementia who are supported to live at home.

4.11 In addition to statutory provision there has been a collaborative approach from the 
local authority with the health board and the third sector, to developing services to 
ensure that Bridgend meets its commitment, in signing the Dublin Declaration in 
2014, to create a dementia friendly Bridgend.  In 2016, initial work took place within 
Maesteg to make it the first town within Bridgend County Borough to gain the status 

Page 34



of ‘working towards a Dementia Friendly Community’; in 2018 further areas 
obtained the same status, and these were  Porthcawl, Cefn Cribwr, Cornelly, Kenfig 
Hill and Pyle. The rollout of dementia friendly communities is being coordinated on 
behalf of the local authority and health board by Bridgend Association of Voluntary 
Organisations (BAVO) in partnership with the Alzheimer’s Society; the Council and 
the Health Board are continuing to support BAVO in delivering a dementia friendly 
Bridgend County Borough. 

4.12 In addition, in 2017 a partnership of Halo, BAVO and the Alzheimer’s Society saw 
the launch of a pilot to deliver dementia friendly swimming sessions, where people 
living with dementia and their carers can attend the swimming pool, with assistance 
from trained dementia friendly staff in the pool, along with the opportunity for a 
meeting in the café afterwards. There have been other initiatives such as for 
example, developing Memory Lane Cafe at Pyle, which was developed in 
partnership with the community, the Library service (AWEN) and the Community 
Network Team based at Pyle Resource Centre. 

4.13 With the release of Integrated Care Fund (ICF) monies specifically related to the 
Welsh Government’s Dementia Action Plan for Wales 2018 – 2022, two bids were 
submitted to create a specialist dementia provision within Integrated Community 
Services and day opportunities within Bridgend County Borough. The Community 
Dementia (Support) Team is an integrated health and social care service made up 
of specialist dementia practitioners from various registered professional 
backgrounds, as well as dementia support workers; the team aims to support the 
Integrated Community Services, in delivering support for people with dementia as 
well as informal carers and staff in their ability to provide person-centred holistic 
care for people with dementia and/or cognitive impairment.  

4.14 The staff are embedded within the Integrated Community Service and work directly 
with people and professionals to provide expert information, signposting, advice, 
and assistance to citizens who have dementia and carers of people who have 
dementia or are concerned about their memory. 

Services for Prisoners

4.15 In order to meet the duties and responsibilities required by the Act, the Authority 
has established a team within HMP Parc which comprises a senior social work 
practitioner, a social worker, a senior occupational therapist who carry out 
assessments and develop managed care and support plans for people in the 
secure estate, as well as support the work of the existing Health Board’s mental 
health in-reach team.

4.16 The Secure Estate Team works extensively with HM Prison and Probation Service 
as a key partner, in particular at the release planning stage. This work includes 
attendance at multi-agency public protection arrangement (MAPPA) meetings. In 
addition the Secure Estate Team carry out Social Care Assessments requested for 
Parole Board Hearings; this involves liaising with and referring on to relevant 
receiving home local authorities of prisoners. This work will often involve the initial 
release of individuals to Approved Premises (AP) prior to move-on into the general 
community.  In some cases, this has resulted in support plans being formulated in 
order to provide the AP support staff with an initial plan on which to build and inform 
ongoing intervention as part of re-settlement of individual prisoners.  It also provides 

Page 35



continuity for the individual, and engages them in the process surrounding their 
release and has proved to be more outcome-focussed. This in turn delivers a more 
holistic approach to support planning, taking account of the Wales Reducing Re-
offending Strategy

4.17 Local authorities in Wales follow the National Pathway for Homelessness Services 
to Children, Young People and Adults in the Secure Estate. The pathway was 
created by a multi-agency Working Group, the Prisoner Accommodation and 
Resettlement Working Group, in which the Authority was a member; the only 
referrals the Authority receives are for those prisoners who have a local connection 
to Bridgend.   Anyone not from Bridgend will have the referral sent to their home 
authority. 

4.18 The Authority’s Secure Estate Team work collaboratively with statutory and third 
sector organisations relating to issues around housing, homelessness, advocacy as 
well as alcohol and substance misuse; the team makes referrals and seek advice 
on behalf of prisoners to these organisations.  The type of support a person will 
need on release will depend on their individual circumstances, and the resources 
available within the area to which the prisoner is moving. The following are 
examples of support the Secure Estate Team has provided:
 Arranging case conferences and inviting relevant agencies and providers, 

including housing and floating support for housing related need schemes, as 
part of the release planning process;

 Researching and establishing relevant services that are available in the 
receiving authority area on release for prisoners.  This has including signposting 
and providing information to the individual prior to release;

 Advocacy plays a vital role in relation to one of the key principles of the Act 
‘Voice & Control’ and the team has made referrals to both advocacy services 
within the County Borough Council whilst prisoners are serving their sentence 
and also to other local authorities as part of release planning;

 Within the prison, in some cases, the Authority works alongside Her Majesty’s 
Prison and Probation Service resettlement officers and have made referrals to 
PACT (Prison Advice and Care Trust) as appropriate, for support through the 
Gate Mentoring Service.  On the day of release, the Mentor meets the individual 
at the prison gate and escorts them to initial appointments with Probation, 
Housing and other services;

 The Samaritans train prisoners to provide emotional support to other prisoners 
by becoming ‘Listeners’ as part of a peer support service within the prison.  This 
support can form an import element in achieving wellbeing as part of the 
assessment and support planning process;

 ‘Dyfodol’ provides support to people with drug and alcohol issues, targeting 
people within the criminal justice system.  Dyfodol provide services both within 
HMP Parc and in the community, and therefore forms an essential part of 
release planning in some individuals. 

4.19 In terms of mental health support to prisoners, Secondary Mental Health services 
are provided by the University Health Board’s In Reach Team. Professionals in this 
service include registered mental health nurses, occupational therapy, psychology 
and a psychiatrist. The Local Authority’s Secure Estate team work collaboratively 
with the In Reach team and contribute to their ‘High Risk’ meetings. Referrals are 
made between the teams for a holistic response to need. However, the resourcing 
of the Secondary Mental Health provision has not risen in line with the rise of the 

Page 36



prison population and there is no specialist mental health service for prisoners who 
have dementia or cognitive impairment.  This service will continue post 1st April 
2019 with Cwm Taf Morgannwg University Health Board. The Secure Estate Team 
also include in their care planning, appropriate ways of working with prisoners who 
have mental health needs and/or dementia for the wider prison staff and ensure 
appropriate services are available for the prisoners’ release.

Mental Health services for children and young people

Local Authority Provision

4.20 There are a number of services and roles that identify and/or support children and 
young people with mental health issues across the county borough: 
 The local authority employs seven school based counsellors, two community 

counsellors and one play therapist. The majority of counsellors work 28 hours 
over four days per week. They are all British Association of Counsellors and 
Psychotherapists (BACP) registered, which means that as a minimum they have 
completed a BACP accredited course. Accreditation can be at various academic 
levels, but will be at university, college or other training provider (not online or 
distance learning) and sets minimum standards in terms of hours of counselling 
delivery. There are also minimum supervision levels and continuous professional 
development requirements, to maintain registration.

 All counsellors are based within early help services. They offer a limited amount 
of training, support and advice to staff within the wider service but their role is 
predominately focused on service delivery.

 In addition to the school counselling service, early help staff have been able to 
access a number of training opportunities. The majority of lead workers have 
been trained in ASIST (Applied Suicide Intervention Skills Training). However, 
staff turnover means that there is an on-going training need for new staff. 
Approximately half a dozen early help staff have been trained in ELSA 
(emotional literacy support).

 Educational psychology colleagues offer half a day’s support to each of the early 
help locality hubs every half term. This has covered a range of topics, such as 
referral pathways for the panel for autistic disorders (PAD).

4.21 Within the Youth Offending Servcies, staff have accessed the following training:
1. How to create emotional health and wellbeing
2. Anxiety awareness 
3. Trauma recovery 
4. ASIST 

Training

4.22 Third sector organisations and colleagues access training, including:

 Mental Health First Aid – subsidised by third sector youth grant – via Bridgend 
Association of Voluntary Organisations (BAVO)

 Youth Mental Health First Aid - subsidised by third sector youth grant – via 
BAVO

 Applied Suicide Intervention Skills Training – self funded – provided by BAVO
 STORM (clinical version of ASIST) – ABMU training
 Suicide Talk – self funded BAVO

Page 37



 Mental Health Awareness – Mental Health Matters Wales (MHMW) – self funded
 Dual Diagnosis – MHMW – self funded
 Confidence and assertiveness – MHMW – self funded
 Mental Capacity Act – MHMW – self funded 
 Depression and Anxiety – free training – MHMW
 Food and Mood – GOFAL – self funded
 Self harm training – MHMW – free
 Mental Health and Adolescence – Mind Cymru – self funded

4.23 These training opportunities are provided and/or promoted by each training provider 
and by BAVO. Uptake can sometimes be an issue due to the cost of the training.

4.24 Within the local authority’s Inclusion Service, there are range of staff who deliver 
school based interventions and training. On-going training is promoted through the 
Inclusion Service training directory that provides a menu of training for schools and 
is distributed termly. 

4.25 Additional training is rolled out on a wider scale when there are opportunities 
provided from grant funding. For example, ‘Thrive’ training was piloted throughout 
schools in Bridgend for looked after children (LAC) pupils from the LAC PDG (pupil 
and deprivation grant). Thrive training provided key school staff with the skills and 
understanding to manage the emotional development of children, especially 
vulnerable children with disruptive and troubling behaviour. The Thrive training 
requires continued professional development of the staff to maintain their licence.

4.26 ELSA is co-ordinated and delivered to school staff (usually support workers) by 
educational psychologists in Central South Consortia (CSC). ELSA training is 
advertised on ‘Cronfa’ which is a system that enables all schools in CSC to log on to 
courses. Termly emails are also sent to all schools to inform them of the ELSA 
training dates. ELSA was designed to build the capacity of schools to support the 
emotional needs of their pupils from within their own resources. It recognises that 
children learn better and are happier in school if their emotional needs are also 
addressed. ELSA is an initiative developed and supported by educational 
psychologists who apply psychological knowledge of children’s social and emotional 
development to particular areas of need and to specific casework.

4.29 The student assist programme (SAP), mindfulness and other psychological 
interventions are delivered by educational psychologists directly to pupils, either on 
an individual basis or to groups of pupils as and when appropriate. Some training of 
these techniques/interventions can be provided to experienced school staff, if the 
school setting requires this. 

CAMHS

Performance & Strategic Direction

4.30 Access to CAMHS for the ABMU population (and most other areas in Wales and 
across England) has historically been poor with long waiting times for children and 
young people.  Performance has improved over the last 18 months, and as 
commissioners ABMU have a much improved understanding of the challenges and 
barriers for the service are when implementing improvements.  

Page 38



4.31 In January 2018, performance of CAMHS improved with significant reductions in 
waiting times, and this upward trend continued for five months.  However, in May, 
performance started to deteriorate and compliance against the Welsh Government 
targets became less consistent.  This correlated with staff leaving and delays in 
advertising and filling these posts.  Action has been taken to stabilise the CAMHS 
Service to maintain the improved position including additional waiting list clinics, 
however it has become clear that changes that are more radical are required to 
transform the service model to provide a sustainable service in the medium to long-
term.  

4.32 ABMU are working with Cwm Taf to develop a new integrated model.  The 
proposed integrated model will include a single point of referral / entry to the service 
via a telephone triage system, which will allow all professionals working with 
children and young people to access advice and consultation from CAMHS, and 
onward referral into CAMHS (primary or secondary) where appropriate.  The 
service will extend the use of the Choice and Partnership Approach (currently 
embedded within Secondary CAMHS) to facilitate provision of the right support, at 
the right time, to the right children, young people and families, by the right clinician 
from across the service.  This will therefore provide a single point of access to all 
primary and secondary CAMHS. 

4.33 From 1st April 2019, Cwm Taf Morgannwg UHB will replace ABMU Health Board as 
the commissioner for CAMHS for children and young people resident in Bridgend.  
This will not change the strategic direction and development already underway. 

Services to Support the Emotional Health & Wellbeing of Children & Young 
People Delivery Plan 

4.34 Discussions have been held through the Western Bay partnership about the 
importance of CAMHS to be seen as a multi-agency problem that can only be 
resolved with a multi-agency response, and this is a joint priority for the Regional 
Partnership Board.

4.35 A Western Bay Delivery Plan for Emotional Health & Wellbeing was developed and 
agreed for 2017/19 with all partners.  The top three priorities are:

 Facilitate the delivery of the Welsh Government performance indicators;
 Improve multi-agency working, and support the delivery of the single point of 

access;
 Develop the NDD Service to meet the needs of the ABM population and the All 

Wales Pathway.

4.36 Some key areas of progress are as follows:

 The Western Bay Emotional Health & Wellbeing Planning Group is currently 
considering plans to develop universal services to support tier one & two services.  
In 2017, ABMU were successful in securing Integrated Care Funding for three 
liaison posts.  These posts facilitate joint working and support early intervention and 
prevention for children, young people and adolescents.

 The Neurodevelopmental Service transferred to ABMU Health Board from Cwm Taf 
in 2017.  During the first 18 months, the NDD team have worked with stakeholders 

Page 39



to develop evidence-based pathways, assessment frameworks and ongoing 
professional development tools to ensure that all children and young people within 
the ABMU footprint are able to access appropriate, robust and timely assessments 
with specialist clinical staff.  Compliance against the Welsh Government target had 
been excellent, however activity and demand on the service is increasing and 
compliance has deteriorated since September 2018 and is now below the 80% 
target.  Additional WLI funding has been identified and agreed through Integrated 
Autism Service slippage monies for the 18/19 financial year.  The increase in 
referrals to the NDD service has been seen across Wales.

 Performance and access to specialist and primary CAMHS has improved over the 
last 18 months; however, a deterioration in performance was seen in Q2 of 2018. 
Performance improved in Q3, and this has been achieved through waiting list 
initiatives and Welsh Government have provided funding for the remainder of 
2018/19 for this to continue. Waiting lists are beginning to equalise across the 3 
areas and agency staff are being brought in to support the services in NPT and 
Swansea to accelerate this.  As at 8th February 2019 the Welsh Government target 
for 80% of non-urgent patients being seen within 4 weeks had been achieved in 
Bridgend for the first time (81.3%).  ABMU and Cwm Taf Health Boards are aiming 
for this target to be achieved across all areas within ABMU by 31st March 2019.

Youth Offending Service (YOS)

4.37 The Crime and Disorder Act 1998 sets out in Section 38 the composition of the 
Youth Offending Service.  It states that the YOS must include at least one member 
of staff nominated by the Local Health Board. Western Bay Youth Justice and Early 
Intervention Service (WBYJ and EIS) has been without a member of  staff provided 
by health staff to act as the statutorily required member of the YOS since 2013 in 
Bridgend and has over the years lost the health staff in Swansea and Neath Port 
Talbot locality teams.  The staff have not been withdrawn from the service but as 
vacancies have occurred naturally these posts have not been filled. 

4.38 WBYJ and EIS is Wales’ largest YOS and is responsible for the care and 
supervision of highly complex young people who have been subject to a plethora of 
adverse childhood experiences. Many of these young people will have presenting 
mental health issues.  The expertise that health professionals bring to this work and 
the wider long-term health benefits that effective rehabilitation of individuals at an 
early age should not be underestimated.  The active participation of health as a 
statutory partner in the WBYJ and EIS is particularly important at this time.  The 
service is participating in a trial of a psychology-led approach to addressing adverse 
childhood experiences and the consequent impact on offending behaviour through 
the application of the “Enhanced Case Management Approach”. Health as a key 
partner in this will be pivotal to seeing the maximum benefit for the children and 
young people involved. 

4.39 Work has been ongoing for some time with ABMU to design a model that meets the 
needs of children and young people who offend or are at risk of offending.  The aim 
being to ensure that children and young people receive the support they need from 
the right professional, in a timely fashion to prevent escalating difficulties and aimed 
at equipping non-specialist services with sufficient knowledge and skills to enable 
them to appropriately identify and respond to emotional and mental health needs. 
This area of work is also necessary under the Welsh Governments “Together for 

Page 40



Mental Health Delivery Plan”. The proposed model remains with ABMU waiting to 
be finalised.

4.40 In the interim WBYJ and EIS has taken actions to secure monthly consultations with 
a consultant child psychiatrist, maintained referral pathways to primary healthcare 
services, links with forensic services and invested in emotional health and wellbeing 
training for staff. This cannot however replace the benefits of having a healthcare 
professional as a seconded staff member. These arrangements are currently under 
review.

5.0 Effect upon Policy Framework and Procedure Rules

5.1 There is no impact on the policy framework and procedure rules.

6.0 Equality Impact Assessment     
   

6.1 Underpinning everything is the commitment to public sector duties of advancing 
equality of opportunity between people who have protected characteristics and 
people who do not, fostering good relations between those who have a protected 
characteristic and those who do not and eliminating discrimination, harassment and 
victimisation. With this in mind, progress will continue to ensure that:

 There is equitable access to services which are responsive to, and inclusive of, 
the individual needs of those with protected characteristics;

 People are not discriminated against or stigmatised because of their mental ill 
health; 

 Welsh speakers are able to receive services that meet their linguistic 
preferences.

6.2 As service developments are planned and implemented the service will complete 
EIAs as required.

7.0 Well-being of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015 Implications

7.1 The implementation of the duties and responsibilities under the Social Services and 
Wellbeing Act (Wales) (SSWBA) 2014, in turn, supports the promotion of two of the 
seven goals of the Well-Being of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015 within the 
County Borough of Bridgend.  By promoting an environment that maximises 
people’s physical and mental well-being and by supporting children, young people, 
adults and their carers and families to fulfil their potential no matter what their 
circumstances, the wellbeing goals of a Healthier and more equal Bridgend and 
Wales are supported.

7.2 The Well-being of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015 provides the basis for 
driving a different kind of public service in Wales, with five ways of working to guide 
how the Authority should work to deliver wellbeing outcomes for people.  The 
following is a summary to show how the five ways of working to achieve the well-
being goals have been considered in this report:

 Long Term – Social Services is demand led and the SSWBA focusses on 
sustainable prevention and wellbeing outcomes for the future. In terms of 
Mental Health, there is a requirement to meet the needs of people in the 

Page 41



longer term and, because of rising demographics and increasing complexity, 
the remodelling and transformation of services continues to be a priority. 

 Prevention – the report highlights the work to date to address the needs of 
those people with mental health concerns and the need to develop more 
prevention and early intervention services.

 Integration – the implementation of the SSWBA requires local authorities to 
work with partners, particularly the NHS and the Police, to ensure care and 
support for people and support for carers is provided.  The report evidences 
the work to date and the future plans to developing mental health services.

 Collaboration –The strategic planning and local delivery of integrated support 
and services are developed with current and new partners in the ABMU and 
Cwm Taf Health Boards.

 Involvement – the key stakeholders are the people who use social care. 
There is considerable engagement including surveys, stakeholder meetings, 
feedback forms and the complaints process. The provision of accessible 
information and advice helps to ensure that the voice of adults, children and 
young people is heard.

8.0 Financial Implications 
 
8.1 In Bridgend, the gross budget for Mental Health specific services this financial year 

2018/19 is £5.4 million.  This is in addition to the forecast gross spend on dementia 
residential placements of £3.3 million highlighted at paragraph 4.10.

8.2 In addition to the above funding, the Council is also forecasting expenditure for 
older person’s mental health services to the value of £462,000 in relation to elderly 
mental health packages provided by independent domiciliary care and direct 
payments.  There is also a secure estate budget of £221,000 that would include 
mental health services within Parc Prison.

8.3 Also within the financial year 2018/19, Supporting people grant funding of 
approximately £500,000 has also been allocated to mental health services across 
and Integrated Care Funding (ICF) for dementia schemes of £235,000.

9.0 Recommendation

9.1 It is recommended that the Cabinet Committee Equalities note the information 
contained in this report. 

Susan Cooper
Corporate Director – Social Services and Wellbeing
March 2019

10. Contact Officer

Jackie Davies, Head of Adult Social Care
Email:jacqueline.davies@bridgend.gov.uk
Tel No: 01656 642121

Page 42



Nicola Echanis, Head of Education and Family Support
Email:Nicola.echanis@bridgend.gov.uk
Tel No: 01656 642611

11. Background documents
None

Page 43



This page is intentionally left blank



BRIDGEND COUNTY BOROUGH COUNCIL

REPORT TO CABINET EQUALITIES COMMITTEE

26 MARCH 2019

REPORT OF THE INTERIM CHIEF EXECUTIVE

UPDATE REPORT ON IMPLEMENTATION OF THE WELSH LANGUAGE (WALES) 
MEASURE 2011 AND WELSH LANGUAGE STANDARDS

1. Purpose of report

1.1 This report updates the Cabinet Equalities Committee (CEC) on the implementation 
of the Welsh Language (Wales) Measure 2011 and the Welsh Language Standards.   

2. Connection to Corporate Improvement Plan / Other Corporate Priority

2.1 The Welsh Language (Wales) Measure 2011 and subsequent Welsh Language 
Standards impact upon the work of the whole council. The standards link to the 
equalities agenda, form a key component of the council’s Transformation Programme 
and Customer Charter, and link to the following corporate priorities:

 Priority 2: Helping people to be more self-reliant; enabling people to use the 
language of their choice by ensuring our systems and front line services are 
delivered bilingually. Ensuring that bilingual systems enable people to better 
equipped to manage situations themselves and the council services can 
concentrate on those in greatest need.

 Priority 3: Smarter use of resources; ensuring that all its resources (financial, 
physical, human and technological) are used as effectively and efficiently as possible 
and support the development of resources throughout the community that can help 
deliver the council’s priorities.

3. Background

3.1 Since the council received its compliance notice in 2015, progress towards 
implementing the 171 assigned standards has continued. 

3.2 Updates on compliance have been provided at every CEC since 28 April 2016. Those 
reports are referenced as background documents to this report.

4. Current situation / proposal

4.1 Key progress/updates with compliance since November 2018 CEC can be 
summarised as:

1. Since having our final determination in August last year, work is continuing in order 
to meet any relevant standards and update documentation accordingly. A draft 
action plan is being progressed to factor in any outstanding work as well as to 
address any issues that arose from attending the Welsh Language Commissioner’s 
best practice workshops at the end of last year, including work to develop our five 

Page 45

Agenda Item 6



year strategy as well as improve our processes in line with the policy-making 
standards.

2. No further update on the draft code of practice to report at this time.

3. Three formal complaints have been received since the November 2018 committee 
meeting:

 A complaint was received 8 February 2018 by the commissioner regarding a 
consultation presentation to parents that was held at Ysgol Gyfun Gymraeg 
Llangynwyd as part of the Post-16 review. The allegation is that the session 
was available in English only. Investigation is ongoing.

 A complaint was received on 12 February by the commissioner in relation to 
an English only maintenance/works sign being placed West Drive, Porthcawl 
(Windsor Road junction). Investigation is ongoing.

 A compliant was received on 12 February from the commissioner in relation to 
an alleged failure to provide a Welsh language version of the current 
subsidised bus consultation document at Pencoed Library. Investigation is 
ongoing.

Previous complaints update:
 The investigation into an email response being provided in Welsh but with 

English only attachments as well as issues related to paying council tax online 
and being diverted to the English version of the external system as opposed 
to the Welsh version are still ongoing.

 The investigation into English wording on the Welsh page of democratic 
services website was concluded after the page was amended.

 The investigation into the complaint made in May 2018 (covered at the July 
2018 committee meeting) in relation to a failure to respond to a Welsh 
language email is still ongoing.
 

5. Effect upon Policy Framework & Procedure Rules

5.1 There are no proposed changes to the Policy Framework and Procedure Rules.

6. Equality Impact Assessment

6.1 This is an information report. As such, no Equality Impact Assessment is required.  

7. Financial Implications

7.1  A recurring budget of £313,000 and a one-off budget of £81,000 were established in 
the 2016-17 budget through the Medium Term Financial Strategy to implement 
those Welsh Language Standards that were agreed to be funded 
corporately. These budgets did not take into account the financial implications of the 
standards that the council appealed. To date not much of this funding has been 
allocated out, as the full financial implications of meeting all standards is not known. 
The one-off budget has been retained until a clearer picture emerges. The cost of 
implementing the Welsh Language Standards will continue to be reviewed during 
2019-20 and, if the costs are deemed to be significantly higher than budgeted, a 
decision will be made corporately as to how this shortfall will be met. The current 
available budget for 2019-20 is £324,649.

Page 46



8. Well-being of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015 Assessment

8.1 This is an update report, therefore a well-being of future generations Act (2015) 
assessment has not taken place in order to prepare this report. 

9. Recommendation

9.1 That the Cabinet Equalities Committee receives and considers this report. 

Mark Shephard
Interim Chief Executive
Date: 26 March 2019 

10. Contact officers:  

Emma Blandon
Communications, Marketing and Engagement Manager
Email: emma.blandon@bridgend.gov.uk
Telephone: 642047
  
Nicola Bunston 
Consultation, Engagement and Equalities Manager
Email: nicola.bunston@bridgend.gov.uk
Telephone:643664

11.  Background papers: 

 28 April 2016 Update report on implementation of the Welsh Language (Wales) 
measure 2011 and Welsh Language standards ; 

 14 July 2016 Welsh Language standards annual report 2015/16 ;

 14 July 2016 Update report on implementation of the Welsh Language (Wales) 
measure 2011 and Welsh Language standards ;

 10 November 2016 Update report on implementation of the Welsh Language 
(Wales) measure 2011 and Welsh Language standards ;

 9 March 2017 Update report on implementation of the Welsh Language (Wales) 
measure 2011 and Welsh Language standards ;

 13 July 2017 Welsh Language standards annual report 2016/17 ;

 13 July 2017 Update report on implementation of the Welsh Language (Wales) 
measure 2011 and Welsh Language standards ;

 23 November 2017 Update report on implementation of the Welsh Language 
(Wales) measure 2011 and Welsh Language standards.

Page 47

mailto:emma.blandon@bridgend.gov.uk
mailto:nicola.bunston@bridgend.gov.uk


 22 March 2018 Update report on implementation of the Welsh Language (Wales) 
measure 2011 and Welsh Language standards.

 16 July  2018 Update report on implementation of the Welsh Language (Wales) 
measure 2011 and Welsh Language standards.

 19 November  2018 Update report on implementation of the Welsh Language (Wales) 
measure 2011 and Welsh Language standards.

Page 48



BRIDGEND COUNTY BOROUGH COUNCIL

REPORT TO CABINET EQUALITIES COMMITTEE

26 MARCH 2019

REPORT OF THE INTERIM CHIEF EXECUTIVE

STRATEGIC EQUALITY PLAN ANNUAL REPORT 2017 / 2018

1. Purpose of report

1.1 The purpose of this report is to provide members with an update on the 
work completed within the Strategic Equality Plan (SEP) 2016-2020 for 
the period 2017 to 2018.  

2. Connection to Corporate Improvement Objectives/Other 
Corporate Priorities

2.1 The Equality Act 2010 sets out both general and specific duties for 
local authorities in Wales. The specific duties include the development 
of a SEP to identify the council’s equality objectives and the publication 
of an annual report.

2.2 The strategic equality plan also supports the council’s following 
corporate priorities:

 Priority 2: Helping people to be more self-reliant; taking early steps to 
reduce or prevent people from becoming vulnerable or dependent on 
the council and its services.

 Priority 3: Smarter use of resources; ensuring that all its resources 
(financial, physical, human and technological) are used as effectively 
and efficiently as possible and support the development of resources 
throughout the community that can help deliver the council’s priorities

 
3. Background

3.1 The SEP annual report enables the council to:

 Monitor and review progress against its strategic equality 
objectives;

 review its objectives and processes in light of any new 
legislation and other new developments;

 engage with relevant stakeholders around equality objectives, 
providing transparency;

 include relevant updates on equality impact assessments, 
procurement arrangements and training. 

Specifically, the report sets out:

Page 49

Agenda Item 7



 The steps taken to identify and collect relevant information;
 Any reasons for not collecting relevant information;
 Where appropriate, employment information, including 

information on training and pay.

3.2 Progress made by the council on each of its seven equality objectives 
is included in the report, which will be of interest to:

 Elected Members; 
 Members of the community and community groups;
 Equality and Human Rights Commission;
 Welsh Government.

4. Current situation 

4.1 This annual report (appendix 1) covers the period 1 April 2017 to 31 
March 2018. The annual report must be published on the council 
website/made available by 1 April 2019.

4.2 Our seven strategic equalities objectives for 2016 – 2020 are:

 transportation;
 fostering good relations and awareness raising;
 our role as an employer;
 mental health;
 children;
 leisure, arts and culture;
 data.

4.3 Some key points to note from the annual report are:

 We have continued to mark, support and raise awareness of 
national equalities and diversity campaigns via social media and our 
website, including International Women’s Day, Urdd National 
Eisteddfod, Foster Care Fortnight 2017, LGBT Fostering and 
Adoption Week, St. David’s Day, St Dwynwen’s day, Holocaust 
Memorial Day, 100 years since women won the right to vote, LGBT 
history month and White Ribbon campaign.

 A ‘train the trainer’ hate crime package was developed in 2017 and 
hate crime awareness workshops were held throughout 2018, 
including sessions which have been held in local schools as well as 
with Mental Health Matters and the YMCA. 

 EIA workshops have been delivered to a target group of employees 
who are responsible for carrying out EIAs. The EIA toolkit was 
updated and made available on the intranet. Support for business 
areas is provided by the Equalities team.

Page 50



 ‘Move more often’ physical activity programme for older adults was 
developed and the Olympage games with care providers. The 
national free swim programme for over 60’s attracted 77,000 
participants. 

 The access to leisure scheme has supported over 160,000 visits 
during 2017/18.

 New ‘changing places’ facilities have been developed at Bryngarw 
Park and Pencoed Library. In partnership with Invacare UK these 
facilities have changing beds and hoist facilities.

 During 2017/18 there were 1126 contacts to the Assia Suite, with 
150 agency referrals.  

 Loneliness and isolation initiatives have been developed with Awen 
including men’s sheds, my sporting day’s etc, the falls prevention 
network operational and mobile programme. Dementia swimming 
programme is now operating. 

 Pencoed Library now hosts monthly sessions with Action on 
Hearing Loss to inform the public about the availability of free 
maintenance for wearers of NHS hearing aids (the first session 
drew six visitors).   

5. Effect upon Policy Framework & Procedure Rules

5.1 As this is an information report, there are no proposed changes to the 
policy framework and procedure rules.

6. Equality Impact Assessment 

6.1 The report provides the committee with information which will positively 
assist in the delivery of the authority’s equality duties. 

7. Financial Implications 

7.1 There are no financial implications identified as this is an 
information/update report.

8. Well-being of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015 Assessment

8.1 This is an update report, therefore a Well-being of Future Generations 
Act (2015) assessment has not taken place in order to prepare this 
report. 

9. Recommendation

9.1 That the Cabinet Committee notes the progress being made and 
approves the Strategic Equality Plan Annual Report 2017/18.  

 

Page 51



Mark Shephard 
Interim Chief Executive – Chief Executive’s Directorate.
Date: 26 March 2019 

10. Contact officers:  

Emma Blandon
Communications, Marketing and Engagement Manager
Email: emma.blandon@bridgend.gov.uk
Telephone: 642047
  
Nicola Bunston 
Consultation, Engagement and Equalities Manager
Email: nicola.bunston@bridgend.gov.uk
Telephone:643664

Background papers: 

 Appendix 1 – 2017/18 SEP Annual report. 

Page 52

mailto:emma.blandon@bridgend.gov.uk
mailto:nicola.bunston@bridgend.gov.uk


Strategic Equality Plan
Annual Report 2017-18

This document is also available in Welsh

Page 53



2

Contents

1. Background..............................................................................................................3

2. Introduction..............................................................................................................4

3. Progress in meeting our objectives during 2017/18 ................................................5

4. Communication, consultation and engagement ......................................................7

5. Equality Impact Assessments (EIAs).......................................................................8

6. Procurement arrangements .....................................................................................8

7. Employment information..........................................................................................8

8. Employees as at 31 March 2017 by gender and pay grade ..................................10

9. Job applications.....................................................................................................10

12. Employees that left the council in 2017-18..........................................................13

13.  Engagement and consultation ............................................................................14

14. Contact us............................................................................................................14

Page 54



3

1. Background 
As an authority, our aim is to understand and tackle the equality barriers that people 
face so that everyone has a fair chance to fulfil their potential. We aim to ensure that 
equality is a part of everything we do and the services we deliver.

We aim to develop our services and activities in line with the Public Sector Equality 
Duty (PSED) and the general duties outlined in the Equality Act 2010. This will help 
us to eliminate unlawful discrimination, advance equality of opportunity and foster 
good relations. 

Our aim is to mainstream equality and diversity, both internally and externally. 

Between Jan-March 2016, we developed our SEP and objectives for 2016-2020. In 
order to do this, we reviewed previous objectives, achievements and what we have 
learnt through our work and engagement with local equality and diversity groups.
 
We consulted with the public and equality groups on these objectives and 101 
people shared their views. The detail of this consultation can be viewed here.

Our SEP was then approved by our Cabinet on 15 March 2016 with the following 
seven strategic objectives for 2016-2020:

Objective What we hope to achieve/support?
Objective 1:
Transportation

We will help to provide an accessible, cost 
effective, all-inclusive transport network 
within Bridgend County Borough.

Objective 2:
Fostering good relations and 
awareness raising

We will positively promote a fairer society in 
the county borough by increasing public 
awareness of the issues faced by people 
with protected characteristics and increasing 
our efforts to help tackle issues such as hate 
crime and domestic abuse.

We will also improve the ways in which we 
communicate, consult and engage with 
those who share a protected characteristic.

Objective 3:
Our role as an employer

We will build on our efforts to be an 
inclusive, supportive employer promoting 
diversity and equality within our workforce, 
enabling all employees who have a 
protected characteristic to fulfil their 
potential. 

Objective 4:
Mental health

Our adult social care service will build on its 
partnership work with the third (voluntary) 
sector to provide mental health support and 
services.

Page 55

http://www.equalityhumanrights.com/uploaded_files/Wales/PSED_Wales_docs/psed_wales_the_essential_guidebk.doc
http://www.equalityhumanrights.com/uploaded_files/Wales/PSED_Wales_docs/psed_wales_the_essential_guidebk.doc
https://democratic.bridgend.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=141&MId=2310&Ver=4&LLL=0


4

Objective 5:
Children

We will positively promote and support the 
emotional and educational attainment of 
children in the county borough and address 
the issues children face such as bullying.

Objective 6:
Leisure, arts and culture

We will work with our partners to help to 
promote fair and equal access to 
participation in sport and recreation services 
as well as in the arts and culture services to 
all members of the community.

Objective 7:
Data

We will continue to develop systems to 
collect, collate, monitor and publish 
equalities data on our service users and 
employees as well as improve our equality 
impact assessments.

Following this, we worked with a range of key managers across the authority to 
develop the 47 actions which sit under these seven objectives.

We consulted with the public and equality groups on these actions and 317 
participants shared their views with us via surveys and through nine engagement 
workshops. The details of this consultation can be viewed here.

Following this, we developed our action plan which was approved by our Cabinet 
Equalities Committee on 14 July 2016. Our second action plan annual report was 
received by this committee on 16 July 2018 and can be viewed here. 

Heads of service and senior service managers are responsible for ensuring the 
actions are achieved within their service areas. The Communications, Marketing and 
Engagement team (who are responsible for the equalities agenda) will ensure 
progress and regular updates are reported at the council’s Cabinet Equalities 
Committee and that feedback is provided to partners, local equality and diversity 
groups and other key stakeholders.

2. Introduction
This is our second annual report for this strategic annual plan. 

In order to prepare this report, we collated data gathered from our annual report of 
our action plan in July 2018. Data provided at that time by service areas and 
partners, provide a continual way of monitoring progress against our objectives and 
actions.

Page 56

https://democratic.bridgend.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=157&MId=2635&Ver=4&LLL=0
https://democratic.bridgend.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=157&MId=3215&Ver=4&LLL=0
https://democratic.bridgend.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=157&MId=3215&Ver=4&LLL=0


5

3. Progress in meeting our objectives during 2017/18
Key progress under our seven objectives can be summarised as:

Transportation

 Highway network pedestrian aids were introduced at 92 junctions. 

 A £85,029.00 grant was provided by Welsh Government towards Bridgend 
Community Transport. We continue to work with the operator to increase 
usage and services, especially services where some supported or 
commercial routes have been reduced.

 Ongoing consultation on the review of learner travel. Consultation has 
concluded on Pencoed and Maesteg clusters with 667 responses and 523 
responses received respectively.  

Fostering good relations

 We have continued to mark, support and raise awareness of national 
equalities and diversity campaigns via social media and our website, 
including International Women’s Day, Urdd National Eisteddfod, Foster 
Care Fortnight 2017, LGBT Fostering Week, St. David’s Day, St 
Dwynwen’s day, Holocaust Memorial Day, 100 years since women won 
the right to vote, LGBT History Month, White Ribbon campaign, 
International Day for the Elimination of Racial Discrimination, IDAHOT Day 
(the annual international day against homophobia and transphobia) and 
World Mental Health Day.

 A ‘train the trainer’ hate crime package was developed in 2017 and hate 
crime awareness workshops were held throughout 2018, including                                                                                   
sessions which held in local schools as well as with Mental Health Matters 
and the YMCA. Regular awareness raising sessions have also taken place 
across the county at shopping centres, offices, bus stations and 
supermarkets.

 The theme of Holocaust Memorial Day 2018 was ‘The Power of Words’ 
which explores how language has been used in the past, and how it is 
used in the present day. BCBC marked this with a public event in 
partnership with Bridgend College. 

 During 2017/18 there were 1126 contacts to the Assia Suite, with 150 
agency referrals.  

The council’s role as an employer 

 The equalities and diversity section within the corporate e-learning module 
has been amended. 

 EIA workshops have been delivered to a target group of employees who 
are responsible for carrying out EIAs. The EIA toolkit was updated and 

Page 57



6

made available on the intranet. Support for business areas is provided by 
Equalities team.

 The recruitment and selection guidelines and e-learning have been 
updated to ensure the Disability Confident campaign are reflected. 

 We continue to promote the Care First service to staff via an ongoing 
communication plan and quarterly Bridgenders newsletter. Three further 
Care First briefing sessions have been held for managers, facilitated by 
our Care First contract manager.

Mental health

 Services provided through ARC, information provision through DEWIS 
and the GP referral scheme and the ‘ageing well in Bridgend’ initiative 
have worked to deliver the prevention and well-being agenda.

 A mental health e-learning module was developed to raise awareness 
amongst employees to help them understand types, causes and treatment 
of mental illness. This has been further promoted through Bridgenders. 

 Relationships with ABMU delivery board have developed well and are 
ongoing. 

Children

 Our Gypsy and Traveller Education Service will continue to build capacity 
in individual schools as required.

 Through the Anti-Bullying Task Group, a behaviour module has been 
developed using the schools SIMS.net management information system. 
Within the module is an agreed set of characteristics for the 
recording/monitoring of bullying incidents within respective schools. 

 Training on this module has been delivered to key staff within 39 schools 
(7 secondary and 32 primary). Follow on sessions have being organised to 
allow schools that have not participated. the opportunity, as well as 
refreshers for those that have already attended. 

Leisure, arts and culture

 A ‘Move more often’ physical activity programme for older adults 
developed and Olympage Games with care providers. 

 The national free swim programme for over 60’s attracted 77,000 
participants. 

 Loneliness and isolation initiatives have been developed with Awen 
including men’s sheds, my sporting day’s etc, falls prevention network 

Page 58



7

operational and mobile programme.. Dementia swimming programme is 
now in operation.  

 Pencoed Library now hosts monthly sessions with Action on Hearing Loss 
to inform the public about the availability of free maintenance for wearers 
of NHS hearing aids (the first session drew 6 visitors).

 At Bridgend Life Centre, Awen and Halo have worked in partnership to 
support dementia friendly activity. This includes a weekly dementia-friendly 
swimming and social group (launched in January 2018). Sessions are now 
attended by an average of 17 participants (people with dementia and 
carers).

 Currently 676 disabled people and 1416 older people hold Halo 
memberships. 

 The access to leisure scheme has supported over 160,000 visits during 
2017/18.

 New ‘changing places’ facilities have been developed at Bryngarw Park 
and Pencoed Library. In partnership with Invacare UK these facilities have 
changing beds and hoist facilities.

Data
 Equality data continues to be included in all public consultations and key 

data is published within consultation reports on the council’s website. 
Demographics are gathered as part of Citizens’ Panel information and 
inform our strategy for Citizens’ Panel development.

 Full EIAs are published alongside relevant Cabinet reports. The Equalities 
team has reviewed the EIA toolkit and provides support to service areas to 
ensure EIAs are robust and meaningful.

 Between February 2017 and January 2018 the council produced four full 
EIAs and 42 EIA screenings. 

4. Communication, consultation and engagement
Between 1 April 2017 and 31 March 2018, the council carried out 12 public 
consultations: 

Proposal to enlarge Coychurch Primary School

Public Space Protection Order consultation

Shaping Bridgend's Future (budget consultation)

Additional learning needs proposal at Ysgol Gyfun Cymraeg Llangynwyd

Page 59



8

Childcare Sufficiency Assessment 

Active Travel 

Taxi age and testing policy consultation

Bridgend Public Services Board draft well-being plan

Pencoed Primary School, additional learning needs 

Supported bus service consultation 

Public conveniences consultation

Replacement Local Development Plan consultations 

In addition to the above consultation exercises, we carried out two engagement 
surveys with our Citizens’ Panel members. The first survey covered school meals 
and meals at home, recycling and waste, customer services and how we could 
improve the Citizens’ Panel and the second survey was a replication of the Shaping 
Bridgend’s Future survey.

5. Equality Impact Assessments (EIAs)
Between 1 April 2017 and 31 March 2018, 17 employees completed the EIA e-
learning module. A further 26 employees completed EIA workshops during March 
2018. A total of 204 employees have completed the e-learning module to date.

6. Procurement arrangements
Service areas work with the procurement team to ensure that EIAs are integrated in 
the procurement process. The contract procedures rules include, as a minimum, 
clauses which include equalities, Welsh language, modern slavery and employment 
legislation. Equality issues are fully integrated into the procurement process from 
pre-qualification to awarding of contract. The Welsh language compliance notice is 
included in every contract.   

7. Employment information 
As at 31 March 2018 there were 6000 employees in the council, including those 
employed in schools. The headcount and age profiles provide a breakdown of these 
employees. However, details of the remaining protected characteristics are based on 
the information voluntarily provided by employees. Percentage figures therefore 
reflect the information available as a percentage of the whole workforce.

BCBC - as at 31.03.2018
Description Male Female Total  %
Total headcount 1202 4798 6065  
Of the above :     

Page 60



9

Full time 920 1610 2530 42.2%
Part time 282 3188 3470 57.8%
     
Disability declared 38 84 122 2.0%
     
Carer responsibility 
declared 33 258 291 4.9%
     
Ethnicity
White 1011 4094 5105 85.1%
Asian or Asian British 3 28 31 0.5%
Black or Black British 4 5 9 0.2%
Mixed Race 3 21 24 0.4%
Any other ethnic group 2 16 18 0.3%
Not declared 97 323 420 7.0%
     
Welsh speaker

 'A little' 154 645 799 13.3%
 'Fairly good' 22 92 114 1.9%

 'Fluent' 34 225 259 4.3%
    

Welsh reader
 'A little' 156 661 817 13.6%

 'Fairly good' 32 108 140 2.3%
 'Fluent' 34 227 261 4.4%

    
Welsh writer

 'A little' 122 546 668 11.1%
 'Fairly good' 25 102 127 2.1%

 'Fluent' 30 208 238 4.0%
     

Sexuality     
Heterosexual 543 2092 2635 43.9%
Bisexual 4 14 18 0.3%
Gay man 20 0 20 0.3%
Gay woman / lesbian 0 10 10 0.2%
Transgender 0 0 0 0%
Other 3 9 12 0.2%
Prefer not to say 29 95 124 2.1%
     
Age profile     
16-19 15 14 29 0.5%
20-25 57 197 254 4.2%
26-30 113 424 537 9.0%
31 - 35 105 523 628 10.5%

Page 61



10

36 - 40 150 587 737 12.3%
41 - 45 130 699 829 13.8%
46 - 50 190 761 951 15.9%
51 - 55 175 709 884 14.7%
56 - 60 153 551 704 11.7%
61 - 65 80 250 330 5.5%
66 + 34 83 117 2.0%
Total 1228 4837 6065  

8. Employees as at 31 March 2017 by gender and pay grade
Our pay and grading structure was implemented on 1 September 2013 and a clear 
and robust mechanism is in place for evaluating the relative grades of positions. This 
is based on roles and responsibilities as opposed to any individual factors relating to 
the employee.

NB The above figures are based on the number of contractual hours positions 
across the authority. If an employee has more than one position, they will be counted 
for each position they hold. As such, the above figures will not correlate with other 
totals in this report, which are based on headcount.

9. Job applications 
Between 1 April 2017 and 31 March 2018, we received 6,683 job applications via the 
HR recruitment system from 3,597 individuals, comprising both internal and external 
applicants. The data does not include applications received directly by some 
schools.

In some instances, applicants did not declare information for each protected 
characteristic. The percentage figures there for identify the level of non response as 
‘Not Declared’ for each particular characteristic.

Description No. Applicants  %
Male Applicants 2554 71.0%
Female Applicants 2554 28.7%
Not declared 11 0.3%

Disability declared/: 186 5.2%

Age Profile:-
16 – 25 876 24.4%

Grade Male Female Total
JE grades 1 – 8 (£14,514 - £23,935) 629 4032 4661
JE grades 9 – 10 (£25,694 - £29,854) 111 221 332
JE grades 11 – 16 (£31,288 - £48,848) 146 300 446
Chief officers (£75,287 - £132,402) 6 6 12
Soulbury & youth officers (£19,856 - £61,239) 10 36 46
Teachers, head, deputy, and assistant head 
teachers (£22,467 - £108,283)

320 1030 1350

Page 62



11

26 – 35 1103 30.7%
36 – 45 791 22.0%
46 – 55 588 16.3%
56 – 65 223 6.2%
66+ 16 0.4%

Sexual Orientation
Heterosexual 3263 90.7%
Bisexual 33 0.9%
Gay Man 43 1.2%
Gay Woman/Lesbian 40 1.1%
Prefer not to say 104 2.9%
Other 18 0.5%
Not Declared 96 2.7%

Marital Status 
Married 1214 33.8%
Living with Partner 648 18.0%
Same Sex or Civil Partnership 3 0.1%
Separated/divorced 245 6.8%
Single 1391 38.7%
Widowed 17 0.5%
Prefer not to say 34 0.9%

  Not Declared 45 1.3%

Race
White 3442 95.7%
Asian/Asian British 36 1.0%
Black/Black British 30 0.8%
Chinese 5 0.1%
Mixed Race 22 0.6%
Prefer not to say 29 0.8%

   Other Ethnic Group 14 0.4%
   Unknown / not stated 19 0.5%

10. Staff training 

Our arrangements for providing corporate staff training are categorised as follows: 

• Post-entry training – service specific training is requested by employees via 
the post entry training policy. Only requests agreed by line managers are 
forwarded to human resources and so we are unable to identify any that may 
have been rejected.

We are unable to disclose information relating to those accessing post entry 
training as, even though data is collected, the number of employees and the 
amount of data is too small for us to interpret in a meaningful way.

Page 63



12

• Face to face training – the majority of our face to face training is targeted at 
employees based on the nature of the role and responsibilities. As such, no 
requests for this training have been declined.

• E-learning – the majority of corporate training is provided via e-learning which 
in the majority of cases can be accessed directly by employees.

The table below sets out the protected characteristics of those employees 
who accessed this method of training between 1 April 2017 to 31 March 2018

Description Completed e-learning
Male 523 19.3%
Female 2185 80.7%

Disability declared/: 64 2.4%

Age Profile:-
16 – 25 161 5.9%
26 – 35 588 21.7%
36 – 45 701 25.9%
46 – 55 810 29.9%
56 – 65 416 15.4%
66+ 32 1.2%

Sexual Orientation
Heterosexual 1397 51.6%
Bisexual 11 0.4%
Gay Man 12 0.4%
Gay Woman/Lesbian 7 0.3%
Prefer not to say 68 2.5%
Other 7 0.3%
Not Declared 1206 44.5%

Marital Status 
Married 1272 47.0%
Living with Partner 211 7.8%
Same Sex or Civil Partnership 6 0.2%
Separated/divorced 202 7.5%
Single 644 23.8%
Widowed 16 0.6%
Prefer not to say 16 0.6%

   Not Declared 341 12.6%

Race
White 2376 87.7%
Asian/Asian British 16 0.6%
Black/Black British 6 0.2%
Chinese 0 0.0%

Page 64



13

Mixed Race 13 0.5%
Prefer not to say 0 0%

   Other Ethnic Group 7 0.3%
   Unknown / not stated 290 10.7%

There are no records in HR about employees being refused access to training as 
outlined above, nor has there been any grievance received on this matter.

11. Grievance and disciplinary hearings held during 2017-18 

This includes employees involved in grievance procedures as a complainant, against 
whom a complaint was made or subject to a disciplinary procedure. To comply with 
the Data Protection Act, we are unable to disclose this information. In each category, 
the number of employees and the amount of data is too small for us to interpret in a 
meaningful way.

12. Employees that left the council in 2017-18 
The following data summarises the protected characteristics of the 741 individuals 
who left the employment of the council between 1 April 2017 and 31 March 2018. 
Data on protected characteristics (other than gender and age) is based upon 
information disclosed voluntarily by the employees. The percentage breakdown is 
based on the total number of leavers.

Description No. of leavers 
empLeavers

% of leavers
Male Employee 205 28.7%
Female Employee 536 71.3%
 
Disability 

declared/:
18 2.7%

 
Age Profile:-
16 – 25 92 8.7%
26 – 35 186 26.0%
36 – 45 158 22.6%
46 – 55 141 21.2%
56 – 65 147 19.4%
66+ 17 2.2%
 
Sexual 

OrientationHeterosexual 384 47.8%
Bisexual 4 0.5%
Gay Man 4 0.4%
Gay 

Woman/Lesbian
6 0.7%

Prefer not to say 17 2.4%
Other 1 0.1%
Not declared 325 48.0%
 
Marital Status 
Married 306 42.4%

Page 65



14

Living with Partner 59 6.8%
Same Sex or Civil 

Partnership
1 0.1%

Separated/divorced 63 8.6%
Single 201 27.1%
Widowed 5 0.8%
Prefer not to say 8 1.2%
Not declared 98 13.0%
 
Race
White 644 88.0%
Asian/Asian British 4 0.4%
Black/Black British 4 0.6%
Mixed Race 1 0.1%
Prefer not to say 0 0%

   Other Ethnic Group 3 0.4%
Not declared 85 10.6%

13.  Engagement and consultation
We aim to include the views of representative groups in our planning and decision 
making processes so we can develop accessible services for the public and our 
employees.

Engagement is an important part of our work so we put specific processes in place to 
ensure that people’s needs are taken into account and that the dimensions of 
diversity are addressed.

Employees and stakeholders who represent the protected characteristic groups are 
involved with the delivery, implementation, monitoring and evaluation of our 
objectives. 

We publish consultation reports on the outcome of our engagement activity to show 
clearly how people have influenced planning and decision making within Bridgend 
County Borough Council.

14. Contact us
If you would like further information on our SEP or a copy of the plan in an alternative 
format, please contact us:
By email: talktous@bridgend.gov.uk
By telephone: 01656 643643
By textphone: 18001 01656 643643
By fax: 01656 668126
In writing: Bridgend County Borough Council Civic Offices, Angel Street, Bridgend, 
CF31 4WB.
Our Customer Contact Centre is open from 8am to 5.30pm, Monday to Friday
This is our complaints procedure. 

Page 66

mailto:talktous@bridgend.gov.uk
file:///C:/Users/Bunstnj/AppData/Local/Microsoft/willidp/AppData/Local/Microsoft/Windows/Temporary%20Internet%20Files/willidp/AppData/Local/Microsoft/Windows/Temporary%20Internet%20Files/willidp/AppData/Local/Microsoft/Windows/Temporary%20Internet%20Files/Content.Outlook/19DHJE8P/This%20change%20effectively%20excludes%20people%20who%20cannot%20write%20or%20who%20do%20not%20have%20access%20to%20email


BRIDGEND COUNTY BOROUGH COUNCIL

REPORT TO CABINET EQUALITIES COMMITTEE

26 MARCH 2019

REPORT OF THE INTERIM CHIEF EXECUTIVE

EQUALITY IMPACT ASSESSMENTS - ANNUAL REVIEW 2018/19

1. Purpose of report

1.1 The purpose of this report is to provide members with an annual 
update on the council’s requirement to undertake Equality Impact 
Assessments (EIAs), an overview of the council’s approach to EIAs 
and an outline of EIAs undertaken in Bridgend County Borough Council 
(BCBC) service areas in 2018/19.   

2. Connection to Corporate Improvement Objectives / Other 
Corporate Priorities

2.1 The Equality Act 2010 sets out both general and specific duties for 
local authorities in Wales - one of which relates to assessing the impact 
of policies and practices. 

2.2 Undertaking EIAs also supports the council’s following corporate 
priorities:

 Priority 2: Helping people to be more self-reliant; taking early steps to 
reduce or prevent people from becoming vulnerable or dependent on 
the council and its services.

 Priority 3: Smarter use of resources; ensuring that all its resources 
(financial, physical, human and technological) are used as effectively 
and efficiently as possible and support the development of resources 
throughout the community that can help deliver the council’s priorities

 
3. Background

3.1 The Equality Act 2010 sets out a general duty that as a public body in 
Wales, BCBC is required to have due regard in its decision making 
processes (including financial decisions) to three factors:

 To eliminate unlawful discrimination, harassment and victimisation;
 To advance equality of opportunity and; 
 To foster good relations between people who share a protected 

characteristic and those who do not. 

3.2  Reports on assessments must set out in particular:

Page 67

Agenda Item 8



 the purpose of the policy or practice that is being assessed;
 a summary of the steps taken to carry out the assessment, including 

consultation and engagement;
 a summary of the information used in the assessment;
 results, and any decisions taken in relation to those results. 

3.3 In addition, when assessing the impact on protected characteristic 
groups, listed authorities must:

 comply with the engagement provisions;
 have due regard to any relevant information held.

4. Current situation 

EIAs – an overview

4.1 The EIA is a tool to assess whether new (or changes to existing) 
policies/services/functions, or the removal of services, could impact on 
different sectors of society in different ways. 

EIAs help the council make better decisions, identify how services can 
be more accessible or improved and consider the nine protected 
characteristics as well as the impact on the Welsh language. 

4.2 Assessing the impact of proposed changes to policies and strategies is 
not just something the law requires, it is an opportunity to ensure 
decisions are based on robust evidence and that they:

 include a consideration of actions that would help to avoid or 
mitigate any impact on individuals or groups; 

 are based on evidence; 
 are transparent;
 record the equality considerations that have been taken into 

account.

4.3 The Welsh Language Standards require us to consider:

 whether a policy-related decision could have a positive or negative 
impact on opportunities for people to use Welsh;

 treating Welsh and English equally;
 ways to demonstrate how positive effects could be increased; 
 how any identified adverse effects could be decreased.

We added questions related to this into the EIA toolkit in 2016 as an 
existing assessment tool rather than create an additional impact 
assessment.  

4.4 It is important to recognise that our duty to eliminate discrimination is a 
continuing one. It cannot be exercised once and for all, but must be 

Page 68



continually revisited and borne in mind, therefore the EIA should be 
revisited as policies change and are reviewed. 

4.5 The lead person drafting or reviewing a policy or strategy within the 
service area is responsible for conducting the EIA. EIA screenings 
should be retained by the service area, referenced and summarised in 
the equalities section of the relevant cabinet report. Where a full EIA is 
needed this should be included as an appendix to the report. 

4.6 The EIA toolkit was revised and updated in February 2018, including 
the EIA screening and full assessment forms. The update involved 
simplifying wording and consolidating information to make the toolkit 
easier to use in preparation for face to face training.

4.7 The administration of the EIA processes was reviewed in 2018, and a 
central database of EIAs is now maintained by the Equalities team. Full 
EIAs are linked to Cabinet reports and as such become public 
documents. All EIA screenings are retained by the service area and the 
Equalities team. 

4.8 Following attendance at the Welsh Language Commissioner’s best 
practice workshops at the end of 2018, we will review the EIA toolkit 
and documentation in early 2019 against the requirements within the 
Welsh Language Standards to ensure that services are able to fully 
consider the impact of a policy related decision on the Welsh 
Language. 

EIA training

4.9 An e-learning module continues to be available for employees which 
provides an overview of EIAs, their role in improving services and a 
guide to conducting them. At the end of the module, staff have an 
opportunity to complete an EIA and compare this against an already 
completed version to assess how the module has assisted in terms of 
knowledge and understanding. 

4.10 In response to requests for additional face to face training on EIAs, 
Corporate Management Board (CMB) agreed a training programme 
which has been developed and will be delivered by external trainers 
Red Shiny Apple. Seven training sessions took place between February 
2018 and June 2018, with 64 staff attending these sessions.

4.11 The feedback on the sessions was extremely positive, with 68% of 
participants rating the quality of the course as excellent and 27% good. 
83% rated the trainer as excellent and 27% good. 83% of participants 
told us that the course was relevant to their role now, and 91% stated that 
they felt the course would be relevant to them in the future. 

Page 69



4.12 During the period February 2018 to January 2019, 43 council 
employees have completed EIA training per the following table:

Directorate Completions
SS & WB 11

Communities 5
Education and Family Support 2

Chief Executive 25
Total 43

To date 204 council employees have completed the EIA e-learning 
module. 

EIAs undertaken in 2017/18

4.13 Between February 2018 and January 2019, six full EIAs were 
undertaken and accompanied Cabinet reports and these are listed in 
appendix 1. 

4.14 33 EIA screenings were undertaken during this period and these are 
listed in appendix 2. These screenings were referenced in the relevant 
Cabinet report/s and indicated that the policy/ies being assessed could 
either be “screened out” or would require a full EIA to be undertaken. 

Where full EIAs are needed the following timeframes apply:

o Within six months or before approval of policy (high impact);
o Within one year of screening (medium impact);
o Within three years of screening (low impact).

5. Effect upon Policy Framework & Procedure Rules

5.1 As this is an information report, there are no proposed changes to the 
policy framework and procedure rules.

6. Equality Impact Assessment 

6.1 The report provides the committee with information which will positively 
assist in the delivery of the authority’s equality duties. 

7. Financial Implications 

7.1 There are no financial implications identified as this is an 
information/update report.

8. Well-being of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015 Assessment

8.1 This is an update report, therefore a Well-being of Future Generations 
Act (2015) assessment has not taken place in order to prepare this 
report. 

Page 70



9. Recommendation

9.1 That the Cabinet Equalities Committee notes the progress made in the 
council during 2018/19 in the completion of Equality Impact 
Assessments, the progress made with training (e-learning and 
development of face to face training) and the review of the 
administration processes to support service areas. 

 
Mark Shephard 
Interim Chief Executive – Chief Executive’s Directorate.
Date: 26 March 2019 

10. Contact officers:  

Emma Blandon
Communications, Marketing and Engagement Manager
Email: emma.blandon@bridgend.gov.uk
Telephone: 642047
  
Nicola Bunston 
Consultation, Engagement and Equalities Manager
Email: nicola.bunston@bridgend.gov.uk
Telephone:643664

Background papers: None

Page 71

mailto:emma.blandon@bridgend.gov.uk
mailto:nicola.bunston@bridgend.gov.uk


This page is intentionally left blank



Appendix 1 - Full Equality Impact Assessments undertaken between February 2018 and January 2019

EIA name: Date:
1. Provision for pupils with additional learning needs (ALN): proposal for changes to Ysgol Gyfun 

Gymraeg Llangynwyd autism spectrum Disorder (ASD) learning resource centre (LRC)
Feb 2018

2. Western Bay regional area plan March 2018

3. Provision for pupils with additional learning needs (ALN): Establishing a learning resource centre for 
pupils with autistic spectrum disorders at Pencoed Primary School

April 2018

4. Rationalisation of supported bus services 2018/2019 May 2018

5. Provision of public conveniences June 2018

6. Medium Term Financial Strategy 2019-20 to 2022-23 December 2018 

P
age 73



Appendix 2 - Initial Screening Equality Impact Assessments undertaken between February 2018 and 
January 2019 

EIA name: Date: Type: Impact:
1. Remodelling older persons accommodation Feb 2018 Screening Low impact

2. Remodelling children’s residential services project Feb 2018 Screening Ongoing Consultation

3. Additional learning needs (ALN) reform Feb 2018 Screening Ongoing Consultation

4. Direct payments policy March 2018 Screening Screened out

5. Cardiff Capital Region City Deal - joint working 
agreement business plan

March 2018 Wellbeing and 
equalities 
assessment 

Wellbeing and equalities 
assessment

6. Employability programme March 2018 Screening Screened out 

7. Bridgend County destination management plan and 
destination action plan

March 2018 Screening Screened out

8. The provision of beach and water safety services in 
partnership with the Royal Lifeboat Institution (RNLI) 

March 2018 Screening Screened out

9. Bridgend County Borough Council biodiversity and 
ecosystems resilience forward work plan 2018-2022

April 2018 Screening Screened out

10. Enterprise hubs development programme April 2018 Screening Screened out

11. Bridgend town heat network (civic centre) project April 2018 Screening Screened out 

P
age 74



12. Review of post-16 education (phase two) April 2018 Screening High impact 

13. Telecare assistive technology equipment May 2018 Screening Low impact 

14. Car parking review May 2018 Screening Ongoing Consultation 

15. Review of the Community Mental Health teams existing 
services and proposed options for service development

June 2018 Screening Screened out 

16. Proposal to incorporate the shared internal audit service 
(RIASS into a larger service hosted by the Vale of 
Glamorgan Council to include two additional councils

June 2018 Screening Screened out

17. Transition team June 2018 Screening Low impact 

18. Bridgend County Borough Council tree management 
policy

June 2018 Screening Screened out

19. Visit Wales regional tourism engagement fund (RTEF), 
Porthcawl seascape project (discover Porthcawl)

June 2018 Screening Screened out

20. Cwmfelin Primary School capital project June 2018 Screening Screened out

21. Bridgend Market improvement plan June 2018 Screening Screened out

22. Public consultation on public spaces protection order 
control of dogs

July 2018 Screening Ongoing Consultation 

23. Playing fields, outdoor sports facilities and parks pavilions September 2018 Screening Ongoing Consultation 

24. Rationalisation of supported bus services 2019/2020 September 2018 Screening Ongoing Consultation 

P
age 75



25. Children’s social care – university support packages for 
care leavers

September 2018 Screening High impact 

26. Vulnerable person’s resettlement scheme (VPRS) October 2018 Screening Screened out

27. Our green spaces – enabling natural resources and well-
being grant

October 2018 Screening Low impact 

28. Porthcawl and the RUN4WALES 10k series October 2018 Screening Screened out

29. School modernisation programme – Band B November 2018 Screening Ongoing Consultation 

30. Parc Afon Ewenni November 2018 Screening Screened out

31. Traffic regulation order/traffic calming and pedestrian 
crossing process 

December 2018 Screening Screened out

32. Empty property strategy consultation January 2019 Screening Screened out

33. Homelessness strategy 2018-2020 January 2019 Screening Screened out

P
age 76



BRIDGEND COUNTY BOROUGH COUNCIL

REPORT TO CABINET EQUALITIES COMMITTEE

26 MARCH 2019

REPORT OF THE INTERIM CHIEF EXECUTIVE

FORWARD WORK PROGRAMME 2019 - 2020

1. Purpose of Report

1.1 The purpose of this report is to seek Cabinet Equalities Committee (CEC) approval 
for a proposed Forward Work Programme for 2019 – 2020. 

2. Connection to Corporate Improvement Objectives/Other Corporate Priorities

2.1 The Forward Work Programme supports the committee in monitoring the council’s 
equality duties, broadens the committee’s understanding of local and national 
equalities issues and supports the council’s Strategic Equality Plan, Customer Care 
Programme and compliance with the Welsh Language Standards.  

2.2 This report also supports the following corporate priorities: 

 Priority 2: Helping people to be more self-reliant; taking early steps to reduce or 
prevent people from becoming vulnerable or dependent on the council and its 
services.

 Priority 3: Smarter use of resources; ensuring that all its resources (financial, 
physical, human and technological) are used as effectively and efficiently as 
possible and support the development of resources throughout the community that 
can help deliver the council’s priorities
 

3. Background

3.1 The remit of the Cabinet Equalities Committee is wide ranging. An annual Forward 
Work Programme allows the committee to consider key national and local equality 
issues alongside its regular business items.     

4. Current situation / proposal

4.1 Appendix 1 sets out a proposal for the committee’s regular business items and key 
equality issues to be considered from March 2019 to March 2020. 

4.2 The proposal is based on:
 the strategic equality objectives in the Strategic Equality Plan 2016 – 2020 

such as improving community relations in the county borough;
 ongoing monitoring of the Welsh Language Standards’ implementation, 

including providing updates on service developments;
 suggestions from the committee;
 national and local equality issues;

Page 77

Agenda Item 9



 established reporting arrangements for the Welsh Language Standards and 
Strategic Equality Plan; 

 consideration of other council priorities and external reports. 

5. Effect upon Policy Framework & Procedure Rules

5.1 The report has no direct effect upon the policy framework or procedure rules.
 
6. Equality Impact Assessment
 
6.1 Whilst no Equality Impact Assessment has been carried out, this Forward Work 

Programme will positively support the authority in meeting its equality duties. 

7. Financial Implications

7.1 There are no financial implications within this report.  

8. Well-being of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015 Assessment

8.1 This is an update report, therefore a Well-being of Future Generations Act (2015) 
assessment has not taken place in order to prepare this report. 

9. Recommendation

9.1 That Cabinet Equalities Committee approves the proposed Forward Work 
Programme 2019-20.

 
Mark Shephard 
Interim Chief Executive – Chief Executive’s Directorate.
Date: 26 March 2019 

10. Contact officers:  

Emma Blandon
Communications, Marketing and Engagement Manager
Email: emma.blandon@bridgend.gov.uk
Telephone: 642047
  
Nicola Bunston 
Consultation, Engagement and Equalities Manager
Email: nicola.bunston@bridgend.gov.uk
Telephone:643664

Background papers: None

Page 78

mailto:emma.blandon@bridgend.gov.uk
mailto:nicola.bunston@bridgend.gov.uk


Bridgend County Borough Council: Cabinet Equalities Committee  
Forward Work Programme 2019/20 DRAFT 

Date Main Item/s Business Items 

26 March 2019

Domestic abuse – older people and perpetrator 
update

Update on mental health provision within 
Bridgend County Borough

 Update report on implementation of Welsh Language 
Standards

 Strategic Equality Plan (SEP) annual report 2017/18 
 Equality Impact Assessment (EIA) annual review report 
 Forward Work Programme (FWP) 2019/2020

July 2019
Report on workforce wellbeing. Update on the 
core offer for staff and progress since the staff 
survey. 

 Update report on implementation of Welsh Language 
Standards

 Welsh Language Standards annual report 17/18
 Workforce report 18/19 
 SEP action plan report (update on work undertaken by 

directorates in the last 12 months)

November 2019

Update on the Community Cohesion Survey and 
the role of the Community Cohesion Officer within 
BCBC. 

 Update report on implementation of Welsh Language 
Standards

 Annual update on progress made with meeting the objectives 
within the Welsh Language Standards Five Year Strategy 
(year 3)

 Annual report on the work of Bridgend Community Cohesion 
and Equality Forum. 

March 2020
Update on Equalities work within schools. To 
include incidents of bullying, racial incidents, 
partnership working, the impact of the Community 
Cohesion Officer role and working with the police. 

 Update report on implementation of Welsh Language 
Standards

 Strategic Equality Plan (SEP) annual report 18/19
 Equality Impact Assessment (EIA) annual review report 
 Forward Work Programme (FWP) 2020/2021

P
age 79



T
his page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	3 Cymeradwyaeth Cofnodion
	4 Diweddariad ar Drais Domestig - Pobl Hyn a'r Cyflawnwr
	Domestic Abuse – Older People and Perpetrator update CEC Appendix 1
	Domestic Abuse – Older People and Perpetrator update CEC Appendix 2

	5 Gwasanaethau Iechyd Meddwl ym Mhen y Bont ar Ogwr
	6 Adroddiad diweddaru ar weithredu Safonau'r Gymraeg
	7 Adroddiad Blynyddol Cynllun Cydraddoldeb Strategol 2017/18
	Strategic Equality Plan Annual Report  2017-2018 DRAFT

	8 Adolygiad Blynyddol Asesiad o Effaith ar Gydraddoldeb 2018/19
	EIA Annual Report Appendices Feb 2018 to Jan 2019

	9 Blaenraglen Waith 2019/20
	Appendix one Draft Forward Work Programme 2019-20


